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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good morning.

          3  Good morning, my name is Jim Gennaro, Chairman of

          4  the Committee on Environmental Protection, and I'd

          5  like to welcome you all to this hearing. The

          6  Committee will hear testimony on two important

          7  items, Intro. No. 109 and Resolution No. 439.

          8                 Intro. 109 is a bill that seeks to

          9  conserve a very important natural resource and to

         10  protect the environment by speaking of the City's

         11  purchase of motor oil.

         12                 The bill requires that the City

         13  purchase re-refined motor oil for use in all City

         14  vehicles, where the cost of such re-refined oil is

         15  no more than 15 percent greater, and I'll get back

         16  to 15 percent in a minute, no more than 50 percent

         17  greater than that of processed crude oil. By that we

         18  mean just regular virgin oil that you'd buy for use

         19  in motor vehicles.

         20                 By altering New York City's

         21  procurement practices with respect to motor oil, the

         22  City would lead by example and would demonstrate the

         23  importance of environmentally responsible

         24  purchasing.

         25                 Please note, however, that we've
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          2  started to consider possible changes to Intro. 109.

          3  One of those changes involves the concept of a price

          4  preference. We are considering substituting that

          5  concept for one which would require that imitation

          6  for bids for motor oil by City agencies include a

          7  specification that re-refined motor oil be used when

          8  a prescribed number of vendors respond.

          9                 That's sort of, I guess, you know,

         10  fancy talk for saying that we don't think we really

         11  need substantive price preference for this, and to

         12  the extent that we don't it's a good thing.

         13                 This bill, as many of you know, is a

         14  reintroduction of one from a previous session. Back

         15  then I guess it was thought that the 15 percent

         16  price preference was needed in order to make, in

         17  order to make that product competitive with virgin

         18  motor oil, we don't think that's the case anymore.

         19                 So, that's the story on that. We look

         20  forward to your testimony on this.

         21                 The second part of the hearing, we'll

         22  hear testimony on Reso 439. This Reso seeks to

         23  address the health impacts associated with motor

         24  vehicle emissions and the negative consequences that

         25  may stem from global warming, which could result
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          2  from the emission of these greenhouse gases.

          3                 We all know that Governor Gray Davis,

          4  back in July, of California signed the bill, calling

          5  upon California to do new clean air standards with

          6  respect to greenhouse gases. They have the ability

          7  to do that, California does, and we have the ability

          8  to piggy-back onto California's leadership and we

          9  believe that we ought to do that.

         10                 Greenhouse gas emissions from motor

         11  vehicles result in such negative health affects as

         12  aggravated asthma, decreased lung capacity and

         13  increased susceptibility through other lung

         14  diseases.

         15                 This is of great importance in New

         16  York City, whose residents suffer from the highest

         17  asthma rates in the country.

         18                 With respect to climate change, it

         19  has been projected that a hotter climate in New York

         20  City may result in increased erosion, more droughts.

         21  We don't want more droughts, do we, Charlie? No, we

         22  don't want that, right? No, we don't want that. And

         23  increase in the loss of wetlands in the area, more

         24  flooding, which could threaten the city's

         25  infrastructure. Greater power demand and a higher
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          2  number of heat-related illnesses and deaths.

          3                 In July of this year, California

          4  adopted legislation that would reduce greenhouse gas

          5  emissions from motor vehicles in that state.

          6  Resolution 439 calls upon New York State to enact

          7  Tom DiNapoli's bill in the Assembly 11895, or such

          8  of the legislation that would adopt new motor

          9  vehicle emission standards identical to those that

         10  will be developed for California. And of course this

         11  is one of the things I'm sure people are going to

         12  talk about. California hasn't yet developed these

         13  standards and here we are calling for them to be

         14  adopted in advance of them even being developed,

         15  which is a little bit of a tricky venture, but we

         16  still think worthwhile.

         17                 By enacting such a law, New York

         18  State would actively play a role in improving air

         19  quality in the state and stemming the potential for

         20  global warming, two issues that are critically

         21  important to New York City.

         22                 And I believe also that cars that are

         23  on greenhouse gases are almost by definition more

         24  fuel efficient, and, so, it would seem to me that

         25  there would be a little bit of a multiplier effect
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          2  in decreased emissions based on decreased fuel burn

          3  per vehicle mile traveled.

          4                 So, for all these reasons I am in

          5  support of this. I was happy to be a sponsor on both

          6  these pieces of legislation, and let me just take

          7  this opportunity to recognize the Council members

          8  that are here with us today.

          9                 To my left, Councilwoman Margarita

         10  Lopez from Manhattan; Councilman Peter Vallone, Jr.,

         11  from Queens; and Councilman Oliver Koppell from the

         12  Bronx.

         13                 We're also joined by Counsel to the

         14  Committee Donna DeCostanzo, and Richard Colon, the

         15  Policy Analyst for the Committee. So, I thank all of

         16  them for being here today. And we'll call our first

         17  witness, the New York City Department of -- DCAS,

         18  okay. DCAS. Lewis Finkelman. And do we have anyone

         19  else from DCAS to testify? Lewis Finkelman. Do we

         20  have anyone else coming for the table for DCAS?

         21                 Okay, we've got a protocol here in

         22  the City where we -- pardon me, in this Committee,

         23  where we put our witnesses under oath, some of the

         24  committees do that, and we're one of the ones that

         25  does.
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          2                 Donna DeCostanzo will administer the

          3  oath. She's almost ready to do that.

          4                 So, Donna, if you would.

          5                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          6  right hand. In the testimony that you're about to

          7  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          8  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          9                 MR. FINKELMAN: I do.

         10                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         11                 MR. FINKELMAN: Good morning, Chairman

         12  and other members of the Committee on Environmental

         13  Protection. I am Lewis Finkelman, General Counsel,

         14  and Deputy Commissioner of Legal Affairs for the

         15  Department of Citywide Administrative Services.

         16                 I am joined today by my DCAS

         17  colleagues, Virginia Ross, Deputy Commissioner of

         18  the Division of Municipal Supply Services, and

         19  Jennifer Blum, Director of Special Projects. Thank

         20  you for the opportunity to testify about Intro. 109.

         21  My testimony today will address DCAS's role in

         22  procuring re-refined motor oil, and the legal and

         23  operational impediments to enacting Intro. 109.

         24                 DCAS, through DMSS, is responsible

         25  for the efficient procurement of goods in excess of
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          2  $25,000 Citywide. We develop, award and administer

          3  contracts on behalf of more than 60 City agencies.

          4  In Fiscal Year 2002, DMSS managed approximately

          5  1,200 requirement contracts with a total value of

          6  $11.2 million. We executed 119 contracts for motor

          7  vehicles alone, worth $50.6 million.

          8                 In addition, the City spent $51.3

          9  million on vehicle-related products, including fuel

         10  oil, gas, diesel fuel and petroleum products.

         11                 DMSS already purchases re-refined

         12  counterparts for all engine lubricating oils and

         13  greases, with the exception of some specialized

         14  products of limited quantity.

         15                 In Fiscal Year 2002, we managed five

         16  such contracts worth approximately $2 million.

         17  Mayoral agencies are required to utilize requirement

         18  contracts when they are available, but operational

         19  decisions regarding the use of various contracted

         20  goods are left to the discretion of the experts of

         21  each individual agency.

         22                 Intro. 109 raises serious questions

         23  of consistency with state-mandated policies of

         24  competitive bidding as codified in Section 103 of

         25  the General Municipal Law and implemented in Chapter
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          2  13 of the City Charter. Those policies essentially

          3  require the City to award a contract to the lowest

          4  responsible bidder meeting the specifications for

          5  the goods to be procured and further have been

          6  construed to require that these specifications be

          7  drafted to further the interests underlying the

          8  competitive bidding laws.

          9                 The proposed legislation's

         10  requirement that DCAS purchase re-refined motor oil

         11  "whenever the price is reasonably competitive"

         12  appears to diverge from the language and purpose of

         13  such competitive bidding mandates.

         14                 There were also several operational

         15  considerations raised by this proposed legislation.

         16                 First, there have been sporadic

         17  supply issues over the last several years, and an

         18  increase in our procurement of re-refined motor oil

         19  may be impossible if we cannot ensure its steady

         20  supply of such products.

         21                 Second, the City has privatized the

         22  maintenance of some of our fleet. Because we have

         23  outsourced the maintenance function, it would be

         24  more difficult and likely more expensive to control

         25  the use of re-refined motor oil in these vehicles.
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          2                 Third, the use of re-refined motor

          3  oil raises warranty issues on numerous vehicles.

          4  Equipment manufacturers may void warranties if other

          5  than specified fuel oil is used and can be

          6  demonstrated to have caused problems with the

          7  vehicles.

          8                 Fourth, the City needs the freedom to

          9  avail itself of new technologies as they come on

         10  line and not be bound to exclusive use of re-refined

         11  motor oil. For example, there is currently some

         12  movement toward the use of synthetic products, which

         13  the City should have the latitude to consider as an

         14  alternative.

         15                 In fact, it is our understanding that

         16  some manufacturers require the use of synthetic

         17  products in their motor vehicles at this time.

         18                 Finally, DCAS cannot present the

         19  complete report by agency on re-refined motor oil

         20  procurement activities, nor in the amounts of

         21  re-refined oil used.

         22                 We only know what is purchased off

         23  the requirement contracts maintained by DCAS. As you

         24  know, City agencies may purchase goods through

         25  alternate methods.
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          2                 For example, agencies may make

          3  purchases for goods less than $25,000 without DCAS'

          4  involvement.

          5                 We look forward to working with the

          6  City Council on recycling activities and

          7  streamlining Citywide procurement; however, for the

          8  aforementioned reasons, we oppose Intro. 109.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you

         10  for your statement. I appreciate that.

         11                 I just want to make reference to it.

         12  I have some prepared questions but you gave me some

         13  things that I want to speak to in your statement.

         14                 Okay, you talk about operational

         15  impediments, your language for enacting Intro. 109

         16  and I'm happy to hear that you're already in the

         17  business of, you know, using some re-refined oil, so

         18  you know how to do that, and that's terrific. So, we

         19  just have to see if we can get us, you know, to do

         20  it a little more. Let me just speak to some of your

         21  considerations.

         22                 Okay, the policies, your statement,

         23  the policies require the City to award contracts to

         24  the lowest responsible bidder, meeting

         25  specifications, okay, and you and your punchline on
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          2  that is that our definition of whenever the price is

          3  reasonably competitive, it appears to divulge from

          4  the language, and the purposes of such competitive

          5  bidding mandates.

          6                 Now, as you know, whenever the price

          7  is reasonably competitive sort of gets to, that is

          8  defined in 109 as the 15 percent price preference,

          9  which I indicated I think is going to go out the

         10  window. So, therefore, I think we're doing okay on

         11  that one, because this is just your statement, that

         12  we have to maintain the robustness of the

         13  competitive bidding practice, and if this stuff is

         14  truly competitive, then this impediment here, as you

         15  say, would sort of go out the window, right?

         16                 MR. FINKELMAN: If there is no

         17  competitive disadvantage, then presumably it would

         18  be legal.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, good. So

         20  we got that one taken care of.

         21                 First, there have been, you indicate

         22  that there have been sporadic supply issues over the

         23  last several years. I don't think we're going to

         24  find that to be an issue. I'm sure that people are

         25  going to present testimony today. I mean, can you
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          2  substantiate the fact that you've tried to reach out

          3  for a supply of this stuff and it hasn't been

          4  around, or do you have people that can speak to

          5  that?

          6                 MR. FINKELMAN: Our understanding is

          7  we put in place a requirement contract that's

          8  available for re-refined oil. It is available to the

          9  agencies to use.

         10                 It's our understanding that there may

         11  be a limitation on the amount that would be

         12  available beyond what's currently being used.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: With that amount

         14  that we are going to want to buy, I think vendors

         15  out there are going to want to step up and we'd be

         16  able to take a bath in this stuff. So, I just, I

         17  think we're going to hear testimony which is going

         18  to indicate that supply, although certainly we can't

         19  mandate something we can't get our hands on, but if

         20  we were to take care of that, then that would be

         21  okay too.

         22                 MR. FINKELMAN: If there's a

         23  sufficient supply, there's a sufficient supply.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Now, the

         25  City's privatized maintenance of the fleet and
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          2  because we have outsourced. I mean, certainly these

          3  private outsourced maintenance contracts that we

          4  have, and we're free to configure those contracts in

          5  any way that we wish, so it's just a matter of when

          6  these things are up for renewal, these contracts, if

          7  it was our wish, or our legal requirement that this

          8  kind of product be used, it would just be a matter

          9  of having these contracts expire or whatever and

         10  then renewing them in a way that they reflect what

         11  the City law is, right? So we could --

         12                 MR. FINKELMAN: Imposing a requirement

         13  that anybody that does maintenance on the City us

         14  re-refined oil?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, yes.

         16                 MR. FINKELMAN: The City could insist

         17  on that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, so, we're

         19  doing great.

         20                 MR. FINKELMAN: That would be tough to

         21  monitor.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It would be

         23  tough, but that's why we have Richard.

         24                 Richard, where are you? Okay, you're

         25  on now, okay? Fine, okay.
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          2                 Now, the issue, and it certainly

          3  sounds like a pretty important one, re-refined motor

          4  oil on, you know, warranty issues. Now, we've done a

          5  little bit of research and we know that at least the

          6  big three auto manufacturers are, you know, fine

          7  with the use of this kind of product. Would the

          8  warranty issue be on heavy equipment type vehicles

          9  or whatever? Because we're reaching out to Ford, GM

         10  and Chrysler.

         11                 MR. FINKELMAN: Yes. My understanding

         12  is, there are serious warranty issues with regard to

         13  the heavier vehicles when you use re-refined oil

         14  that would lead to I guess the manufacturer

         15  nullifying any warranties if you use such oil.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I mean, is this

         17  your sense. Is this your hunch, or is it --

         18                 MR. FINKELMAN: It's my understanding

         19  that there are City contracts in effect with these

         20  manufacturers that would lead to a nullification of

         21  the warranty, if such oil were used. You have Fire

         22  Department is here, I think DEP, they can better

         23  address those particular issues, but that is our

         24  understanding.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, because it

                                                            18

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  just seemed to me how, you know, public and private

          3  entities, the entire State of Indiana, the cities of

          4  Los Angeles, Long Beach, Santa Monica, Carmel, San

          5  Jose, San Francisco, the Coca Cola Bottle Company,

          6  U.S. Postal Service, National Park Service, Mercedes

          7  Benz, they all do this, and, you know, Benz uses,

          8  Mercedes uses -- you know, they make the vehicles,

          9  you know, monster vehicles, whatever, that they --

         10  because I think some of the big engines used, and

         11  some of the big heavy equipment things are, you

         12  know, Mercedes Benz vehicles, so clearly if these

         13  other states and cities can see fit to have their

         14  heavy equipment run on this stuff, we'll have to,

         15  but you know what? I'll put an asterisk into that

         16  one.

         17                 MR. FINKELMAN: Well, unfortunately,

         18  warranties are something that the City is not really

         19  in a position to negotiate greatly with

         20  manufacturers.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I understand.

         22  But we've got these trucks now, like the trucks we

         23  have with these warranties aren't going to live

         24  forever. So, if we have to exclude some of these

         25  things until the warranties are up, or we can buy
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          2  newer heavy equipment that doesn't have these kind

          3  of restrictions, you know, it's not going to happen

          4  over night.

          5                 Okay, and with regard to agencies

          6  that can purchase $25,000 or less without DMS's,

          7  DMSS' involvement, I mean if this were City law

          8  they'd have to do it.

          9                 MR. FINKELMAN: Absolutely.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay? Yes, I'd

         11  like to thank you. Thank you, I'd like to open this

         12  up for questioning from some of my other members,

         13  and I recognize Council Member Koppell.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chairman. Good morning. I am going to just, I

         16  don't want to duplicate the questions the chair

         17  asked, but just to clarify a little bit, you, in

         18  your own statement, with respect to the issue of the

         19  state and city laws on competitive bidding, there

         20  would be no prohibition in a contract specification,

         21  to put in a specification for bidding that the

         22  re-refined oil be used?

         23                 MR. FINKELMAN: It could if it unduly

         24  restricts competition.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: If it unduly
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          2  restricts competition?

          3                 MR. FINKELMAN: Right.

          4                 So, if you had one vendor out there

          5  who could comply with the contract specification,

          6  arguably that limitation could be illegal.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Is that a

          8  finding that you've made?

          9                 MR. FINKELMAN: Is that a finding?

         10  That's a finding that the New York State courts have

         11  made.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No, sir. Have

         13  you found that to be the case with re-refined oil?

         14                 MR. FINKELMAN: As to how many vendors

         15  are out there?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.

         17                 MR. FINKELMAN: We don't have a

         18  finding as to how many vendors there are out there.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay. So, if

         20  in fact, and I'm not conceding that this is a

         21  problem, but if in fact the bill said subject to

         22  their being a number of vendors who can provide

         23  that, that would be okay, right?

         24                 MR. FINKELMAN: If there were ample

         25  number of vendors in the field and it was adequate
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          2  competition, then arguably it would pass muster.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Now, you are

          4  aware, are you not, that the City is mandated not to

          5  put into all of its contracts for procurement that

          6  rainforest hardwoods not be used as components in

          7  any City purchased products; that's true, isn't it?

          8                 MR. FINKELMAN: I believe that's the

          9  case.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.

         11                 And is there anything in the law that

         12  requires that that says that there has to be a

         13  market or alternatives available or competition

         14  available?

         15                 MR. FINKELMAN: I don't know anything

         16  on that issue, but, again --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I know a

         18  little bit about that --

         19                 MR. FINKELMAN: If there were not

         20  sufficient competition when we let out a contract,

         21  there would be a contention by some member of the

         22  public that this violates the competitive bidding

         23  laws.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, I've

         25  never heard that used in the rainforest hardwood
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          2  case, but what I would say to you is, if that is in

          3  fact a problem, we would have to first determine

          4  that there is some inhibition in the number of

          5  bidders, the information that we seem to have in the

          6  Committee is that there is plenty of supply and that

          7  there isn't this problem.

          8                 Going to the issue of the warranties,

          9  if I read your statement, it says that the

         10  warranties may be voided, if other than specified

         11  oil is used and, the word is and here in your

         12  statement, can be demonstrated to have caused

         13  problems with a vehicle, so you have to have both

         14  according to your statement.

         15                 MR. FINKELMAN: In some warranties. My

         16  understanding is that the Police Department has

         17  submitted written testimony to the effect that they

         18  actually have contracts with manufacturers that

         19  required synthetic fuel. You don't have a warranty

         20  if you don't use synthetic fuel, so it depends on

         21  the given contract and what the language of the

         22  warranty is. I guess that's the majority of cases.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: If that is a

         24  problem, and, again, I'm not conceding it is, but if

         25  it were and we were to build in an exception where a
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          2  warranty could not be negotiated that allowed for

          3  its use, that would obviate this problem, right?

          4                 MR. FINKELMAN: You can't --

          5  warranties are not negotiated. Manufacturers have

          6  sort of given boilerplate warranties that they give

          7  to the City and any other purchaser. So, are you

          8  asking me if -- there's no potential to negotiate

          9  these warranties in 99.9 percent of the cases that

         10  we enter into contracts, so it's just not feasible.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: You say the

         12  City of New York has no bargaining power?

         13                 MR. FINKELMAN: When it comes to

         14  warranties that a manufacturer gives you, we don't.

         15  We're like any other customer.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, but if

         17  we put in an exception that said where the warranty

         18  cannot be satisfied unless non-rerefined oil is

         19  used, that would cover this, right?

         20                 MR. FINKELMAN: Presumably, yes. The

         21  warranty issue, sure.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         23  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         25  Council Member Koppell. I recognize Council Member
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          2  Vallone.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chair. I commend you for this hearing.

          5                 And thank you for coming down and

          6  giving us your opinions. As you know, we like to

          7  work with the Administration as much as possible,

          8  and it appears, I was going to go through all these

          9  objections as an attorney, but our chair has done

         10  that and so has Mr. Koppell, so I won't do it again,

         11  it appears we're very close, and I look forward to

         12  you submitting your proposed changes to this bill so

         13  that we may incorporate them into this bill, such

         14  things as if supply is adequate and of that nature.

         15  It appears we may be able to come to a consensus

         16  here, which is the way we like to operate. But since

         17  my questions have been asked at this point, I'll

         18  yield to some time down the line. Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Thank you

         20  very much. We appreciate it.

         21                 Daniel Shackner from the Fire

         22  Department, and Thomas McDonald, also from the Fire

         23  Department.

         24                 Thank you both very much for coming,

         25  I appreciate it. I appreciate your presence here.
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          2  Donna DeCostanzo will administer -- she'll do both

          3  at once. Donna, please.

          4                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          5  right hand.

          6                 In the testimony that you're about to

          7  give do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          8  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SHACKNER: I do.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER McDONALD: I

         11  do.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         13  much. You can please state your names for the record

         14  and proceed with your testimony.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER McDONALD: Tom

         16  McDonald, Assistant Commissioner of Fleet Services.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SHACKNER: Dan

         18  Shackner, Deputy Commissioner, Intergovernmental

         19  Affairs.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Welcome.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER McDONALD: Good

         22  morning, Chairperson Mr. Gennaro, and members of the

         23  Committee. My name is Tom McDonald, I'm Assistant

         24  Commissioner responsible for fleet services.

         25                 The Fire Department's mission is
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          2  protecting life and safety of all New Yorkers, but

          3  filling this mission requires vehicles to respond in

          4  the most extreme conditions.

          5                 The failure of even one Fire

          6  Department vehicle while responding to the scene of

          7  a fire or medical emergency could result in serious

          8  injury or death.

          9                 Eighty percent of our fire apparatus,

         10  that is, our engines and ladders, use Detroit Diesel

         11  engines, which are covered by a five-year warranty

         12  on the engine and other drive line components. While

         13  Detroit Diesel does not specifically prohibit use of

         14  refined motor oil in their engines, they warn

         15  against its use due to its inconsistencies in

         16  processing and quality of these oils.

         17                 I quote from their engine requirement

         18  manual, finished re-refined oil should be consistent

         19  in properties and quality. Unfortunately, this is

         20  not the norm. It is the inconsistencies of the

         21  processing and product quality, which make most

         22  users reluctant to utilize re-refined products.

         23                 In other words, the manufacturer

         24  warns that while re-refined oil has the potential to

         25  be just as good as regular motor oil, it is often
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          2  inferior quality.

          3                 In addition, I have been informed by

          4  the manufacturer, Detroit Diesel, that all of its

          5  new engines manufactured as of October 1st of 2002

          6  under the new EPA regulations, require the use of

          7  non-re-refined oil.

          8                 We expect to start receiving these

          9  new engines next year and we'll be unable to use

         10  re-refined oils in any of these new vehicles.

         11                 Since 9/11, the Fire Department has

         12  purchased 61 pieces of apparatus under the emergency

         13  declaration to replace those destroyed at the World

         14  Trade Center.

         15                 We have an additional order of 88

         16  pumpers that will be delivered over the course of

         17  the next 18 months beginning next month.

         18                 Consistency is essential to the

         19  operation of our fleet. We must be assured that all

         20  products we use in our vehicles are of constantly

         21  high quality. We are extremely reluctant to use a

         22  product that the manufacturer of our engines warns

         23  against, therefore, we cannot support the proposed

         24  introduction.

         25                 Thank you for this opportunity.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          3  you very much for your statement, and for this

          4  information.

          5                 You know, certainly this Committee

          6  and this Council is not going to do anything to

          7  endanger the preparedness or the ability of the Fire

          8  Department to fulfill its mission. And certainly the

          9  language in the requirements manual from Detroit

         10  Diesel I think is a warning that those that wish to

         11  endeavor to use re-refined motor oil products should

         12  do it well, and use high quality re-refined motor

         13  oil and not, and just to make sure that whatever

         14  re-refined oil is used is of high quality. Certainly

         15  we would endeavor to do that.

         16                 And with respect to new EPA

         17  regulations, that's a new one. That under new EPA

         18  regulations require the use of non-re-refined oil,

         19  it seems that that would be Detroit Diesel which is

         20  -- I don't think it's the case where EPA, where

         21  this is an EPA requirement, this is Detroit Diesel

         22  requirement; is that right? Am I getting that right?

         23  I don't know.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER McDONALD: I'm

         25  only aware of the Detroit Diesel requirements.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. I

          3  understand. Here's your statement. I have been

          4  informed by the manufacturer, meaning Detroit

          5  Diesel, that all of its new engines manufactured

          6  after October 1st, 2002, under new EPA regulations,

          7  will require the use of non-re-refined oil. And so,

          8  I think the fact that the phrase under new EP

          9  regulations has been dropped into that sentence, is

         10  I guess intended to confer that the EPA doesn't want

         11  you to use, that the EPA doesn't want Detroit

         12  Diesel's engines to use this product, and I don't

         13  really think that's the case.

         14                 I think that was the intent to

         15  putting it in there, but I don't think it works.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER McDONALD: No,

         17  I don't believe so. I believe the intent of our

         18  statement is to inform you that Detroit Diesel has a

         19  new engine that's coming out, that's mandated, and

         20  this is all true of all engine manufacturers

         21  starting October 1 of 2002.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, not just of

         23  Detroit Diesel, of all --

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER McDONALD: I

         25  can only speak right now of Detroit Diesel, because
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          2  that is the engine that we are experimenting with

          3  for our new vehicles.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER McDONALD: The

          6  other manufacturers right now, Caterpillar, does not

          7  have an engine that's going to be compliant with the

          8  EPA regulations of October 1 of 2002. The other

          9  engine manufacturer would be Cummings. And right now

         10  Cummings is, I don't have all the particulars on

         11  that engine.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see. So,

         13  what you're saying, that as of October 1, 2002,

         14  there is an EPA regulation that is going to require

         15  either higher performance or better pollution or

         16  something.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER McDONALD:

         18  That's correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And in order for

         20  them to meet that requirement, Detroit Diesel is

         21  saying in order for us to get there, we believe that

         22  our engines can't use re-refined motor oil?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER McDONALD:

         24  That's the information I have.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, great.
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          2  That's good clarification for me and I do appreciate

          3  that, and thank you, and I recognize Council Member

          4  Vallone.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you.

          6                 I also have a question about that

          7  regulation. As you know, our Chairman read off a

          8  list of other cities that are dealing, that have

          9  signed this type of law into effect, do you have any

         10  idea how those other cities are dealing with these

         11  new EPA regulations?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER McDONALD: No,

         13  I don't. But I would advise you to think about the

         14  changes going to take effect October 1st of 2002,

         15  the EPA also has projected a radical change in the

         16  Year 2004 and 2007. The engine manufacturers need to

         17  comply with and/or suffer a penalty.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you. As

         19  Chair of Public Safety your concerns are of serious

         20  concern to me, and that is something that I will

         21  make sure this Committee takes into consideration

         22  while considering this bill.

         23                 Thank you for testifying.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, thank you,

         25  Council Member Vallone. I also would once again wish
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          2  to say for the record that we're not going to do

          3  anything to endanger the Fire Department of carrying

          4  out its mission, and to the extent that this bill

          5  has to have, you know, carve outs or whatever, in

          6  order to protect that, I mean certainly that would

          7  be considered.

          8                 I recognize Council Member Koppell.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes, I'm a

         10  little bit confused and I think that all of us are a

         11  little confused.

         12                 If you would turn, please, and look

         13  with me at the second page, well, no, it's the

         14  second page of your statement, the paragraph that

         15  starts in addition. You see that paragraph, sir? It

         16  starts "in addition I've been informed."

         17                 The sentence reads as follows: "In

         18  addition, I've been informed by the manufacturer

         19  that all of its new engines manufactured after

         20  October 1, 2002, under new EPA regulations require

         21  the use of non-re-refined oils.

         22                 Now, does "under new regulations,"

         23  "new EPA," that phrase, does that modify all of its

         24  new engines, or does it modify will require the use

         25  of non-re-refined oils? Which of those two things?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER McDONALD: I'm

          3  not sure I understand your question.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay. I think

          5  what the statement says is that the new engines are

          6  manufactured under EPA regulation. Mr. Vallone, and

          7  I think the Chair interpreted it to say that the EPA

          8  regulations require the use of non-re-refined oils.

          9  The EPA regulations don't say anything about that,

         10  do they?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER McDONALD: No,

         12  they do not.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay, I just

         14  wanted to clarify that. It's not the EPA regulations

         15  that require it, what you're saying is EPA

         16  regulations require the manufacturer to put out a

         17  new product, and the manufacturer is telling you

         18  that they're going to require that that new product

         19  has to be operated only with a virgin oil or

         20  whatever it's called; is that correct?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER McDONALD: That

         22  is my understanding.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: All right.

         24  Just so we understand who is telling who to do what.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER McDONALD:
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          2  Sure.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay, I

          4  understand it now. I share the concern. Just one

          5  last question. This is sort of a naive question. I

          6  assume that if the oil is of inferior quality, that

          7  would result in the engines being not as well

          8  maintained, and they would require replacement more

          9  quickly. Well, what would the consequence be?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER McDONALD: It

         11  is possible you'll have failure of power, and the

         12  failure of power would mean you would have failure

         13  to accelerate and/or pump water or raise your

         14  aerial.  All those factors rely off the engine

         15  performance.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And do you

         17  know of instances where there's been such a failure

         18  of power because of use of non-original oils?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER McDONALD: No,

         20  I do not.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay, thank

         22  you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you both

         24  very much. I appreciate your being here. Your

         25  testimony was enlightening and we appreciate it.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER McDONALD:

          4  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Next witness,

          6  Mark Lanaghan from DEP.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN: Good

          8  morning.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thanks for

         10  coming. We're going to put you through the ritual.

         11                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that

         12  you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

         13  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         14  truth?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN: I

         16  do.

         17                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mark.

         19  Please state your full name for the record and

         20  proceed with your testimony.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN: My

         22  name is Mark Lanagan. I'm an Assistant Commissioner

         23  at the New York City Department of Environmental

         24  Protection.

         25                 Thank you for the opportunity to
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          2  deliver a few remarks on Intro. 109, which I'm sorry

          3  are not written in a form for distribution to the

          4  members. I apologize for that.

          5                 DEP has some experience with the use

          6  of re-refined motor oil. That experience largely

          7  comes from an 18-month period beginning in 1997,

          8  when our fleet management staff began using recycled

          9  motor oil largely as a cost-saving measure. I'm

         10  advised that re-refined motor oil at that time was

         11  cheaper than virgin motor oil, and in an effort to

         12  cut fleet management costs we were using re-refined

         13  motor oil.

         14                 The motor oil was purchased off of a

         15  DCAS requirement contract, as the DCAS gentleman

         16  mentioned. The re-refined motor oil was used in

         17  DEP's large mixed fleet, which is predominantly

         18  heavy and medium-duty vehicles, including a lot of

         19  vehicles that operate on diesel engines. By the end

         20  of the 18-month period, DEP's fleet management staff

         21  concluded that use of recycled motor oil was a cause

         22  of engine failure in a couple of the large

         23  heavy-duty engines, and for that reason they

         24  suspended use of re-refined motor oil at that time.

         25                 We're continuing to look into the
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          2  possibility of implementing motor oil reuse program,

          3  in part because of cost savings. It continues to be

          4  cheaper to recycle motor oil than to purchase virgin

          5  motor oil in some cases. At this time we're running

          6  a pilot program on a heavy duty vehicle in which the

          7  motor oil is recycled internally, using a device, a

          8  puridine oil filter system, which creates what

          9  amounts to a perpetual reuse system within the

         10  engine where the oil doesn't leave the vehicle, it

         11  is recycled within the vehicle engine.

         12                 Over the six-month trial period, we

         13  found the system to work well, and we are hopeful of

         14  the possibility of expanding it to other vehicles.

         15  It's only operating in a single heavy-duty vehicle,

         16  which is described to me as a load-lugger.

         17                 Based on our experience, our fleet

         18  management staff is not supportive of a one size

         19  fits all mandate for recycled motor oil. Such a

         20  mandate may do more harm than good to the sound

         21  operation of our motor vehicle fleet, however, we

         22  are looking for ways to increase our reliance on

         23  recycled motor oil within sensible boundaries that

         24  don't endanger the successful operation of our

         25  fleet.
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          2                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          3  present the statement.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          5  you, Mark.

          6                 When was the test period again? It

          7  was like an 18-month test period?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN:

          9  1997.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: 1997. And how

         11  many, like how wide spread? I mean, how many? Was

         12  this a big test, or you used it exclusively or?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN:

         14  Exclusively within our entire fleet for --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: For the whole

         16  fleet?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN: For

         18  the whole fleet, for approximately 18 months.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see. Now, you

         20  had indicated that based on this trial, DEP decided

         21  to suspend the use of re-refined motor oils?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN: The

         23  problems were limited to heavy vehicles --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Heavy duty was

         25  what was the problem. It wasn't the light duty or
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          2  the regular passenger fleet kind of car or --

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN: The

          4  light duty and medium duty vehicles were not to the

          5  best of my knowledge adversely affected by the use

          6  of the re-refined motor oil, a couple of expensive

          7  diesel engines were, and the fleet management staff

          8  made a decision to cease use of re-refined motor

          9  oil, even for the light duty vehicles because of the

         10  simplicity of having just one motor oil available

         11  for use in all vehicles. So, rather than start

         12  creating different classes of vehicles requiring

         13  different motor oils, they made the decision to just

         14  go back to virgin motor oil for the entire fleet.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Did you buy the

         16  oils, I guess we're delving into all of the

         17  particulars of this program, but I guess like any

         18  other product there is like high-quality re-refined

         19  where they do it right, and then it could be lower

         20  quality where they don't get quite all the

         21  impurities out of it, so I mean did you use from

         22  different suppliers or different, or just like one

         23  requirements contract where you pretty much got it

         24  from one vendor? Because I'm just wondering whether

         25  or not it could have been the case where you're
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          2  dealing with an entity that didn't have, you know,

          3  the highest product standards and as a result it

          4  caused a problem for the fleet.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN: I

          6  can't answer that question, Council member. To the

          7  best of my knowledge, we bought off a Citywide

          8  requirements contract for re-refined motor oil.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I think that

         10  what we can do as we proceed with this, we're happy

         11  of know the trial that DEP had for this 18 months

         12  and to the extent that we can, you know, draw upon

         13  that body of work and what your experiences were,

         14  that will help us.

         15                 And, so, we may reach out to you to

         16  find out a little more about that. And, of course,

         17  at this time the maintenance was being done in-house

         18  by DEP, all your own people, no out-sourcing, it was

         19  --

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN: We

         21  don't outsource maintenance, to the best of my

         22  knowledge. Just parts.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So we may have

         24  to draw upon your expertise, or you know, that of

         25  your agency as we try to proceed, and I'm glad you
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          2  came forward today to tell us about your

          3  experiences, and how you might be able to help us

          4  by, you know, giving us access to the folks who

          5  really saw this and lived it for 18 months.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN:

          7  We'll be happy to share our information that we have

          8  on this ongoing pilot with you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, Mark

         10  thanks a lot. I appreciate it. I appreciate it very

         11  much. I just wanted to say for the record that the

         12  Police Department did submit written testimony. The

         13  Police Department is in opposition to 109 and they

         14  have a couple paragraph letter here where they lay

         15  that out.

         16                 So, I just want to say for the record

         17  that the Police Department did submit testimony. And

         18  that leads us to our next witness. Scott Parker of

         19  the National Oil Recyclers Association.

         20                 Mr. Parker.

         21                 Who is going to be left from the

         22  Administration to listen to what's going on? I just

         23  want to make sure that people are here from the

         24  Administration to hear their remaining testimony.

         25                 We're also going to try to, we have
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          2  another topic to get on and we have to vacate these

          3  premises by 1:00 p.m., so I'm going to try to talk

          4  faster now, and maybe if everyone could do the same

          5  that would be good.

          6                 Mr. Parker, thanks for being here.

          7  I'm very grateful that you're here with us today.

          8  We'd like to give you the same treatment as other

          9  witnesses and place you under oath and Donna will do

         10  the honors.

         11                 Donna, please.

         12                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that

         13  you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

         14  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         15  truth?

         16                 MR. PARKER: I do.

         17                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         18                 MR. PARKER: Mr. Speaker --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You've got to

         20  push the button in.

         21                 I kind of like the ring of it, you

         22  called me Mr. Speaker. You could call me that all

         23  you want.

         24                 MR. PARKER: You got it.

         25                 Members of the Council, my name is
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          2  Scott Parker. I am Executive Director of NORA, An

          3  Association of Responsible Recyclers, formerly known

          4  as the National Oil Recyclers Association.

          5                 NORA was founded in 1984 and is the

          6  trade association that represents all forms of

          7  legitimate oil recycling, including oil re-refining.

          8                 Our more than 180 members provide

          9  recycling services throughout the entire United

         10  States, including the empire state.

         11                 I appreciate the opportunity to offer

         12  comments on this very important proposal. NORA

         13  enthusiastically endorses the proposal before you.

         14  The technology to re-refine used lubricants into

         15  high quality specification base stocks has been

         16  available for at least 15 years. The products made

         17  from re-refined oils meet all the engine

         18  manufacturer specifications and warranties.

         19                 Equally important, consumers

         20  acceptance of automotive lubricants made from

         21  re-refined oils has been growing dramatically in

         22  recent years. This is not a still on the drawing

         23  board concept - three of our members manufacturer

         24  lubricant base stocks from used oil. The contact

         25  information for these companies - Avista Resources,
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          2  Safety-Kleen and Probex - is attached. Many other

          3  companies can develop or acquire the necessary

          4  re-refining technology.

          5                 Traditionally, Europe has been the

          6  world leader both in attitudes and actions of

          7  promoting recycling. The proposed legislation will

          8  provide New York City with an opportunity to lead

          9  the nation by demonstrating that government can use

         10  its purchasing power to do the right thing - namely

         11  reuse our natural resources and simultaneously

         12  reduce our addiction to foreign oil.

         13                 This legislation is a sensible and

         14  achievable proposal that will assist the re-refining

         15  industry, gain some traction improving the value of

         16  re-refined base oils. This is not a subsidy. Our

         17  companies can compete with virgin oils within the

         18  parameters of the legislation as originally drafted.

         19                 NORA commends the Council for

         20  considering this visionary proposal and respectfully

         21  recommends its enactment into law.

         22                 I'd also like to add just two

         23  comments based on what I heard from earlier

         24  testimony. One is on the warranty issue. I've worked

         25  in similar industries and for the most part this is
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          2  a non-issue. The main criteria is not what it's

          3  called, it's whether it meets the specifications or

          4  not.

          5                 Generally it is illegal to restrict

          6  the purchase of a product within a warranty, if it

          7  meets specifications.

          8                 And secondly, I just want to also

          9  note from my personal experience that New York State

         10  does have a precedent in place for price variants

         11  for environmentally friendly products. Specifically

         12  New York State allows for a 20 percent variance in

         13  the price for remanufactured parts and products such

         14  as toner cartridges.

         15                 I'd be happy to answer any questions

         16  you may have.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Parker.

         19                 Okay, you mentioned that your trade

         20  association represents all forms of, as you say, oil

         21  recycling that is legitimate. Is that to say there

         22  are oil recyclers who are putting out crummy

         23  products that are not legitimate, they call

         24  themselves re-refined, they are putting it through a

         25  little filter and that's it. I mean, does this go
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          2  on?

          3                 MR. PARKER: I'm not probably

          4  qualified to answer that question.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, but you

          6  make your statement that, you know, that for you to

          7  say that you represent the people who do oil

          8  recycling in a way that is legitimate is to say that

          9  there are people who aren't doing it that way.

         10                 MR. PARKER: I will state one thing,

         11  that we do --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, I guess

         13  there's a really way of saying like are there bad

         14  apples in your business?

         15                 MR. PARKER: I could say there's bad

         16  apples in every business. Just like original

         17  equipment manufacturers or anybody can have a bad

         18  product.

         19                 When members join our particular

         20  organization we do have a code of ethics that people

         21  have to adhere to, and when their product as meeting

         22  specifications, it meets a specification. I can't

         23  speak for the companies I do not represent.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But certainly to

         25  flip that around, the people who would be members of
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          2  your association have to adhere to a specified

          3  standard of quality regarding, I don't know,

          4  whatever it is, like whatever the specifications

          5  would be, that the oil is fully clean and they've

          6  taken all the impurities out, and it's, you know,

          7  still able to withstand the thermal --

          8                 MR. PARKER: Well, our organization is

          9  not in the business of setting standards; however,

         10  there are organizations like the American Petroleum

         11  Institute that does. When a member joins our

         12  organization, our code of ethics state that their

         13  product when they state it meets a specification, it

         14  does meet that specification.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, got it.

         16                 You also mention that Europe has been

         17  a world leader with regard to, you mentioned Europe

         18  has been a leader with regard to recycling in

         19  general. Do you specifically mean that the use of

         20  re-refined motor oil in Europe is more widespread

         21  than it is here?

         22                 MR. PARKER: It is my understanding

         23  that that is the case. We do have one of our member

         24  companies that will be testifying today that can

         25  probably answer that question, but it is my
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          2  understanding that the purchase of re-refined oil,

          3  re-refined lubricants in Europe is more prevalent

          4  than it is here in the states.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let me just, one

          6  last item before I turn it over to another member

          7  who has a question.

          8                 You mentioned that our legislation as

          9  it's currently written is not a subsidy. "Our

         10  companies..." -- Your words, "our companies can

         11  compete with virgin oils within the parameters of

         12  this legislation." Is that to say that if there was

         13  no price preference that your members might have

         14  difficulty competing with virgin?

         15                 MR. PARKER: The proposal that was

         16  submitted to me did include the 15 percent language

         17  as you mentioned.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I faked you out.

         19                 MR. PARKER: You did fake me out.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I faked you out.

         21                 MR. PARKER: So, I'm going to fake you

         22  --  no.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. No, you

         24  don't do that.

         25                 MR. PARKER: What happened was after I
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          2  got the proposal, I did a round robin of calls to my

          3  different members, and I asked them if they could

          4  compete within that 15 percent variance that was

          5  allowed. They all answered in the affirmative. I do

          6  not have personal knowledge if they can compete

          7  without that. I imagine that they probably could at

          8  some point, but I don't have first-hand knowledge of

          9  that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, yes,

         11  because we have other people coming forward to

         12  testify and when we can ask them that.

         13                 MR. PARKER: Sure.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I recognize

         15  Council Member Vallone. Thank you very much.

         16                 MR. PARKER: Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

         18  Mr. Parker, for testifying today.

         19                 MR. PARKER: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I have a

         21  question. You state, and I read from your statement,

         22   "the products made from re-refined oils meet all

         23  engine manufacturer specifications and warranties.

         24                 I'm reading a letter from the Police

         25  Department which says the use of re-refined motor
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          2  oil in many cases voids the warranty on the vehicle.

          3  Examples of this circumstance are Harley Davidson as

          4  well as Mack engines, which are installed in many

          5  Department vehicles. In fact, Harley Davidson voids

          6  all warranties unless Harley Davidson brand motor

          7  oil is used. What you just stated you thought is

          8  illegal.

          9                 MR. PARKER: I believe that is the

         10  case.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: So, what is

         12  your opinion on the Police Department's position?

         13                 MR. PARKER: My opinion is for the

         14  most part, most warranties are written, if they're

         15  trying to move you away from purchasing

         16  independent-type product, they'll do such in that

         17  language. And I believe we heard testimony on the

         18  Detroit diesel, they don't specifically ask that.

         19  You do not use re-refined, but they recommend that

         20  you don't. This is a case in many products that

         21  contain recycled content.

         22                 Regarding what the Police Department

         23  said, obviously I have not reviewed what they have

         24  there, but generally there's been a lot of cases,

         25  I've been involved with one against Lexmark
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          2  Corporation where if you try to restrict free

          3  competition by structuring a warranty in such a way,

          4  those are generally illegal and they have been

          5  challenged in court successfully.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay, thank

          7  you for that information.

          8                 MR. PARKER: Sure.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Parker. Thank you very much. I appreciate your

         11  testimony.

         12                 MR. PARKER: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I appreciate

         14  your being here.

         15                 MR. PARKER: Have a good day.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You bet.

         17                 Okay, our next witness is Cathy Kenny

         18  from the New York State Petroleum Council.

         19                 Cathy, thanks for coming. I call her

         20  Cathy, because I know Cathy Kenny a long time.

         21                 You have testified before this

         22  Committee many times, and I'm grateful and pleased

         23  to have you back. But just because we're friends

         24  doesn't mean I'm not going to put you under oath.

         25  Sorry.
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          2                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that

          3  you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

          4  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

          5  truth?

          6                 MS. KENNY: I do.

          7                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: When the light

          9  is off, it's on.

         10                 MS. KENNY: Good morning.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Cathy, thank you

         12  very much for coming. Please state your full name

         13  for the record and proceed with your good testimony.

         14                 MS. KENNY: Good morning. I'm Cathy

         15  Kenny, and, for the record, I'm the Associate

         16  Director of the New York State Petroleum Council.

         17                 The Petroleum Council is a trade

         18  association that represents a number of major

         19  branded petroleum companies that market in the

         20  state.

         21                 We are a division of the Washington,

         22  D.C. Based American Petroleum Institute, API, that

         23  represents over 400 companies engaged in all aspects

         24  of the oil and gas industry, including exploration,

         25  production, refining and marketing. Locally our
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          2  members include Amerada Hess, BP, CITGO,

          3  ConocoPhillips, ExxonMobil and Shell/Texaco, legally

          4  known as Motiva Enterprises. On behalf of our member

          5  companies, I am pleased to offer our comments on

          6  Intro. 109 of 2002, a bill relative to the purchase

          7  of re-refined oil by the New York City agencies.

          8  Because our member companies are concerned about the

          9  waste of our natural resources and are

         10  wholeheartedly committed to encouraging state and

         11  local programs that recognize the importance of

         12  establishing both public and private recycling

         13  efforts, we welcome this opportunity.

         14                 I might say parenthetically, if I can

         15  depart, I was going to bring information on state

         16  and federal laws. I decided not to because I thought

         17  those were well known, and this Committee was

         18  educated on them. So, it seems like the City

         19  agencies are not, so I might add parenthetically

         20  federal law requires its agencies to use re-refined

         21  oil. In addition, there is an executive --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: In its own

         23  vehicles? If I can just jump in.

         24                 MS. KENNY: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Federal
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          2  government for heavy equipment, all this.

          3                 MS. KENNY: All their equipment, all

          4  their agencies use it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

          6                 MS. KENNY: And evidently without any

          7  problem.

          8                 My comments will essentially focus on

          9  the Committee, providing the Committee with some

         10  information about EPI's efforts to educate and

         11  encourage the public to dispose of oil responsibly

         12  and to explain the features of API's licensing

         13  program, the gasoline and diesel engine oils. To

         14  encourage and recycling of used oil, API has created

         15  a template for model state legislation to help

         16  establish used oil fund designated to help cities

         17  and towns establish used oil drop-off of curbside

         18  collection programs.

         19                 To date it has been adopted by 16

         20  states. Among other things, the model bill

         21  recognizes that used oil is a valuable resource

         22  which can be utilized as an environmentally

         23  acceptable source of energy or as clean refined

         24  products, and that a fee structure to support a

         25  collection program is ideally the best way to assure
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          2  a program's success.

          3                 Although New York State --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Cathy, if we

          5  could, I've kind of got a little ants in my pants

          6  here --

          7                 MS. KENNY: Okay, let me go ahead to

          8  --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Could we get to

         10  like the used motor oil thing?

         11                 MS. KENNY: I think the point I make

         12  really in page three is that since 1991 there are 15

         13  times as many collection sites, millions of gallons

         14  of used oil are collected every year. So the point

         15  there is there is a market for this, and I think the

         16  most important point that should be made here is

         17  that I don't know what re-refined oil the City

         18  agencies are using, but as long as it's got an API

         19  doughnut, our logo, and our API starburst on it, it

         20  meets engine as well as oil industry standards. And

         21  I'd like to skip ahead to the end of my presentation

         22  to page five, because this is probably the most

         23  important things --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please, please.

         25                 MS. KENNY: And I think that will
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          2  respond to any objections I've heard this morning

          3  from City agencies.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Great.

          5                 MS. KENNY: API's log and starburst is

          6  an indication of the quality and performance

          7  standard recognized by the oil industry and the

          8  engine manufacturers. They're intended to help the

          9  consumer identify products that have satisfied the

         10  requirements for licensing certification.

         11                 What's important is about the API

         12  system is that includes an audit process to verify

         13  the licensed products in the marketplace meet with

         14  the terms of the API licensing agreement. These

         15  performance requirements, test methods and limits

         16  are cooperatively established by vehicle and/or

         17  engine manufacturers, and I wasn't going to read the

         18  footnote but I think it's important at this point,

         19  those manufacturers include Ford, General Motors,

         20  Daimler-Chrysler, Japan Automobile Manufacturers

         21  Association, Engine Manufacturers Association and

         22  technical societies, such as ASTM and SAE.

         23                 It's important to know that API's

         24  licensing of an engine oil does not imply that oils

         25  with the API marks are appropriate for all vehicles
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          2  or engines in the field. The consumer must refer to

          3  the owner or operator's manual for specific vehicle

          4  or engine manufacturers' engine oil recommendations.

          5  Another note of caution is probably also an order.

          6                 An engine oil whose label indicates

          7  that it meets all API performance standards does not

          8  mean that it is a licensed API product, and ergo

          9  probably not audited.  Unless the API, the product

         10  bears an API certification mark and/or service

         11  symbol, the consumer has no guarantee of the

         12  product's quality. If the product is not licensed,

         13  it's not subject to API's audit and quality

         14  assurance product.

         15                 I go on to describe the audit program

         16  as pretty extensive. They take samples annually,

         17  then from those samples that pass the performance

         18  standards, they run them in engines. Violations for

         19  non-compliance are dealt with, technical

         20  specifications may result in denial of suspension of

         21  a license, if a license is displayed improperly or

         22  somebody uses it indiscriminately and is not

         23  licensed they have to decease and desist. That

         24  system has been in place since 1947, and now today

         25  there is an inter-industry advisor group that
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          2  provides recommendations on API's engine oil

          3  licensing and certification system, including

          4  tolerance limits, the after market program and any

          5  other relevant issues to the licensing program. So

          6  the public may be assured that any technological

          7  advances in either oil processing or testing are

          8  being scrutinized under the API program. I think in

          9  general, if they want to learn more about the use of

         10  this, I have indicated in my testimony our web site,

         11  I think the City needs to be, City agencies anyway,

         12  maybe not the Council, but the City agencies really

         13  need to be educated about the type of refined oil.

         14  It is as good as virgin oil, and quite often when

         15  mechanics want to give you a reason why something is

         16  wrong, sometimes it's not always the product.

         17                 I remember bringing my car into a

         18  dealer to be repaired, and he said, you know, Cathy,

         19  it's that new gasoline, and he didn't realize who he

         20  was talking to. He was talking about reformulated

         21  gasoline, and that was a lot of malarchy, as my

         22  mother would say, you know, it had nothing to do

         23  with the reformulated gasoline.

         24                 So, I would first of all ask the

         25  agency if their product was API's license, and I
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          2  would go so far, it is included in the federal

          3  statute by the way, it must meet API performance.

          4  Now, that's not to say it's API certified and

          5  licensed, and I would almost go so far as you should

          6  include it in your bill. If it's used there, the

          7  industry, as well as the engine manufacturers will

          8  back it up.

          9                 I also distributed in English and in

         10  Spanish API's Motor Oil Guide, that explains

         11  performance level, viscosity, economy rating and

         12  what the certification are, so that your agencies

         13  will know what to look for. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         15  you, Cathy. I was going to ask you whether or not

         16  you were familiar with other legislation like this

         17  that's been put forward around the country, as to

         18  whether or not those are the pieces of -- whether

         19  those laws required either API standards or API

         20  certification. Maybe that would be a way to sort of

         21  skin the cat here, right?

         22                 MS. KENNY: Well, the federal statute

         23  does.  In the 16 states that adopted API's model

         24  legislation it does. I might almost add, I had to

         25  skip it, but New York State law requires public
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          2  officials to encourage the use of refined oil. It

          3  says specifically.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. As a matter

          5  of fact, Donna had put that in her briefing paper to

          6  me.

          7                 MS. KENNY: Okay. So, I think it's all

          8  to do about nothing. I think maybe a call to the

          9  engine manufacturers, but they serve on our API

         10  committees that endorse the certification system,

         11  so.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let me just

         13  state once again, or to ask once again, now when I

         14  heard the story, or what DEP had been through with

         15  regard to its use of re-refined oil, it was, you

         16  know, cheaper than virgin oil and so forth, now that

         17  could have been the case that it was like a low bid

         18  kind of thing, it was like a requirements contract,

         19  didn't have API standards, didn't have API

         20  certification, and in those cases you could be using

         21  a very inferior product which would lead to their

         22  experience.

         23                 MS. KENNY: If they didn't use API

         24  license and they had a problem, I would go back and

         25  ask them to use an API licensed product, we have
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          2  symbol or doughnut, and then come back and tell me

          3  they had a problem.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          5                 MS. KENNY: I'd be surprised.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Now, you said

          7  that with regard to the federal government; did the

          8  federal government require its API standards but not

          9  necessarily API certification; is that right?

         10                 MS. KENNY: I was going to bring it

         11  with me but I think it said API performance

         12  requirements.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But not the

         14  actual API licensing.

         15                 MS. KENNY: License and doughnut.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But we could do

         17  that, right?

         18                 MS. KENNY: Easily. Other statutes

         19  have done that, yes.

         20                 You're not giving me business, I mean

         21  I should make that clear.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I know that.

         23                 MS. KENNY: We set the standards.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You would never

         25  give me the business.
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          2                 MS. KENNY: One of our members, Safety

          3  Clean, is here, and they can explain to you some of

          4  the pricing and competitive bidding issues.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Thank you.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 Council Member Koppell.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I think you

          9  were here when the Fire Department said that I guess

         10  Detroit Diesel they anticipate is going to require

         11  the use of non-re-refined oils; do you know anything

         12  about that?

         13                 MS. KENNY: Not at all. In fact, I'm

         14  going to go back to the office and check.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I think it

         16  would be useful for us to know whether that

         17  statement is accurate or not.

         18                 MS. KENNY: Well, I think a call to

         19  Detroit Engine, and sometimes people read their

         20  warranties very quickly and these guys are in the

         21  business of fleet management, so I have to think

         22  they read their warranties carefully, that's their

         23  business.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No, it

         25  doesn't say the warranties. It says I have been
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          2  informed by the manufacturer that all of its new

          3  engines will require the use of non-re-refined oil.

          4                 MS. KENNY: Well, I think I need to

          5  check with API on that, because these manufacturers

          6  sit on our committee.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I think that

          8  would be important. None of us want to have fire

          9  engines that don't work.

         10                 MS. KENNY: Of course, yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: The other

         12  thing, speaking of fire engines, because that was I

         13  guess the most disturbing testimony we heard, the

         14  federal government has fire engines, do you know

         15  whether they use re-refined oil in their fire

         16  engines?

         17                 MS. KENNY: All of their agencies are

         18  required to use 25 percent of their base stock in

         19  re-refined oil.

         20                 At the website, they also list, by

         21  the way, you were talking about vendors, they have a

         22  list of vendors for this.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, you

         24  said now 25 percent. That's not -- what does that

         25  mean?
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          2                 MS. KENNY: Re-refined oil is, you

          3  take the used oil it's refined, and a base stock is

          4  made and to that additives are added. So, I think

          5  that's what the federal government, it's essentially

          6  re-refined product. When they say 25 percent, I

          7  think that refers to the base product, and the

          8  additives don't have to be recycled or reused,

          9  obviously. When they say 25 percent, they're

         10  referring to the base stock of the oil itself, not

         11  the finished product which has other additives in

         12  it.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I'm not sure

         14  I understand what you said. I know I didn't

         15  understand what you said.

         16                 When you buy oil you buy a can of

         17  oil, right?

         18                 MS. KENNY: And it has additives and

         19  it has oil-based stocks.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, when I

         21  buy oil, I just buy a can and it's called oil.

         22                 MS. KENNY: And it's a finished

         23  product.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So, I don't

         25  know how the City buys it. I assume they also buy
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          2  probably a big can, but they buy --

          3                 MS. KENNY: A finished product.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: A finished

          5  product.

          6                 So, when we require them to use

          7  re-refined oil in the bill, are we saying that all

          8  of the material in that can is re-refined oil?

          9                 MS. KENNY: No, the base stock oil is.

         10  There's additives put in there and those are not

         11  recycled products.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And, so, what

         13  we would be requiring by this bill would be the same

         14  thing that the federal government is requiring?

         15                 MS. KENNY: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         18  you.

         19                 MS. KENNY: Maybe I could explain.

         20  They do some of their own mixing, that's why.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, our next

         22  witnesses, I know there's a plane waiting for them

         23  at the airport, and, so, we have to kind of get them

         24  on.

         25                 Cathy, thanks very much. I appreciate
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          2  it.

          3                 Okay, the representatives of Safety

          4  Clean. Mike Sommer.

          5                 MR. SOMMER: Sommer.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sommer, okay.

          7                 William Sheils. Joseph Ioia. Okay.

          8                 Before we proceed I'd like to

          9  recognize Council Member Serrano, who has joined us.

         10  Council Member Serrano from the Bronx, a member of

         11  the Committee.

         12                 Thank you all very much for coming. I

         13  know you are on kind of a time schedule here. Thank

         14  you for being here. Donna will give you the oath and

         15  we'll proceed.

         16                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that

         17  you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

         18  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         19  truth?

         20                 MR. SHEILS: I do.

         21                 MS. SOMMER: I do.

         22                 MR. IOIA: I do.

         23                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         24                 MR. SHEILS: Good morning.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very
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          2  much. Please state your name for the record and

          3  proceed with your testimony.

          4                 MR. SHEILS: Well, thank you for

          5  allowing us to come in and testify before the

          6  Committee. I'm Bill Sheils, National Sales Manager

          7  of Safety Clean. Mike Sommer is Vice President of

          8  Sales, and Joe A. Ioia, who is the distributor for

          9  our current re-refined contract with the City.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Welcome.

         11                 MR. SHEILS: Thank you.

         12                 I'd like to read a short statement

         13  and then we'll be more than happy to take any

         14  questions you have.

         15                 Safety Clean is the largest

         16  re-refiner of used oil in North America, processing

         17  over 140 million gallons of used oil through our two

         18  plants.

         19                 The East Chicago Indiana Plant

         20  processes approximately 100 million gallons

         21  annually.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Excuse me, just

         23  a second. We need to speak right into the mic.

         24                 MR. SHEILS: Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Just like I am,
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          2  right into it.

          3                 MR. SHEILS: This is high-tech.

          4                 The East Chicago, Indiana plant

          5  processes approximately 100 million gallons annually

          6  and our plant in Breslau, Ontario processes

          7  approximately 40 million gallons annually.

          8                 This is a small percentage of the

          9  estimated 1.4 billion gallons of used oil generated

         10  each year in the United States alone. Most of the

         11  oil not sent to be re-refined is recycled by being

         12  used as a fuel oil. Another large amount of used oil

         13  is disposed of improperly by being dumped in sewers

         14  or back yards.

         15                 The difference between recycling and

         16  re-refining is that recycling used oil for fuel is a

         17  one-time step, while re-refining gives almost

         18  unlimited life to used oil.

         19                 Oil doesn't break down per se. The

         20  additives needed to make today's high performance

         21  oils break down. The base oil can be used over and

         22  over again. This re-refining of used oil has a

         23  dramatic environmental impact. One, it greatly

         24  reduces the C02 emissions generated, transporting

         25  crude oil into the United States for refining
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          2  gasoline and virgin-based oil; and, two, it helps

          3  conserve a non-renewable energy source. Re-refining

          4  used oil also lessens our dependence on foreign

          5  countries for imported oil.

          6                 Safety Clean is the only re-refiner

          7  in North America that manufactures finished

          8  lubricants in addition to producing base oils.

          9                 This means that Safety Clean is the

         10  only re-refiner that can ensure the continued

         11  quality and availability of our products to our

         12  customers. Safety Clean has taken great pains to

         13  upgrade our plants to ensure that we will continue

         14  to meet the ever changing demands of the motor oil

         15  industry. We are committed to deliver our base oils

         16  and finished products to our customers at a

         17  competitive price.

         18                 The US Government, via Executive

         19  Order 13-101 signed by President Clinton, supports

         20  the use of re-refined oil along with many state,

         21  city and local governments. Re-refined oils are also

         22  used by some of this country's largest

         23  manufacturers, such as Ford, GM, Chrysler, as well

         24  as many other smaller companies.

         25                 The use of re-refined oil is good for
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          2  the environment and is also a good business

          3  decision.

          4                 Thank you. If you have any questions,

          5  we'd be more than happy to answer them.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You bet.

          7                 We've heard testimony from -- I mean,

          8  I'm sure you were here for the whole hearing, right?

          9                 MR. SHEILS: Yes, we were.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And one of the

         11  -- let's go back to DCAS' testimony, in which the

         12  General Counsel of DCAS believed that there might be

         13  a potential supply problem. Could you speak to the

         14  supply issue?

         15                 MR. SHEILS: The supply issue is a

         16  moot point. If we entered into agreement with the

         17  City of New York under a contract, we would

         18  stipulate that we would supply the oil gallonage

         19  specified under the contract.

         20                 In other words, if you tell us you

         21  need 2 million gallons a year and we enter into that

         22  contract, we will deliver the 2 million gallons a

         23  year.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And what's your

         25  thoughts about the new EPA requirements and the fact
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          2  that Detroit Diesel is seeking to limit or restrict

          3  or prohibit the use of re-refined oils, presumably

          4  because they don't believe that the use of

          5  re-refined oils is somehow inconsistent with their

          6  new engines' ability to meet those standards.

          7  Presumably these new EPA requirements require the

          8  engines to be cleaner or more efficient or something

          9  like that, and I guess the engines are made

         10  differently, and apparently, you know, Detroit

         11  Diesel doesn't believe that re-refined oil sort of

         12  cut the mustard, and can you just fill me in on

         13  that?

         14                 MR. SHEILS: Well, the next generation

         15  is an emissions standard primarily, it's EGR.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon? Pardon?

         17                 MR. SHEILS: Well, the next generation

         18  of EPA requirements, I guess the classification is

         19  called EGR, which is exhaust gas recirculation, and

         20  that's just a guess. I'm not up to date on it. But

         21  each standard, as Cathy I think pointed out under

         22  the API, is that each generation changes, you have a

         23  new API classification. The next one coming up is

         24  CI4. As long as we meet CI4, which our products can,

         25  we should be able to meet any requirements of any
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          2  engine manufacturer.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see. So, CI4

          4  is --

          5                 MR. SHEILS: Is the next generation of

          6  heavy duty engine oil, yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. So, when

          8  people speak of the new EPA requirements, they're

          9  talking about --

         10                 MR. SHEILS: They're talking about the

         11  current one that's just going into effect in

         12  October. That new rating is called CI4, for heavy

         13  duty engine oil.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. What does

         15  that mean, CI4? How are these engines different or

         16  better? Like what do they do differently than like

         17  the current generation of engines?

         18                 MR. SHEILS: Well, each

         19  classification, I guess it started out with CA and

         20  then the next generation with CB, CD, CE, we're up

         21  to CI.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         23                 MR. SHEILS: Each one has an

         24  improvement of some sort over the previous one,

         25  whether it's oxidation or anything, this new one
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          2  seems to be more emissions driven, they want to get

          3  the sulfur out of the oil, the engines requirement

          4  due to APA laws and requirements.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          6                 MR. SHEILS: But regardless of that,

          7  engine manufacturers, along with the EPI, come up

          8  with a certification, and this next one is called

          9  CI4. If you meet CI4 you meet the qualifications and

         10  the requirements. It's individual engine

         11  manufacturers. I guess the Detroit Diesel was a

         12  shock to us probably as well as anybody else,

         13  because we have not heard this.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see. I see.

         15  So, what really is the case that all, I guess

         16  Detroit Diesel and other manufacturers, you know,

         17  have to produce these new standard of engines as of

         18  October 1st and as long as the oil that's put in

         19  there meet the standards, it should be fine.

         20                 MR. SHEILS: Correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You also heard

         22  testimony from the Fire Department with regard to --

         23                 MR. SHEILS: I think the Fire

         24  Department said that 80 percent of their vehicles

         25  use Detroit Diesel and that they basically were told
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          2  that next year the new engines will not --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          4                 MR. SHEILS: Once again, I said this

          5  is a big surprise to us.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          7                 MR. SHEILS: Most of the engine oil

          8  manufacturers do not specifically approve or

          9  disapprove any oil. They will let, say if you meet

         10  the specifications, the current API specifications,

         11  you meet our requirements.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         13                 MR. SHEILS: As I said, the new

         14  requirement is CI4, we have an oil that meets CI4. I

         15  think you brought it up, sir, is that the statement

         16  was that some re-refiners are inconsistent.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         18                 MR. SHEILS: I think that pertains to

         19  who is providing you the oil. We manufacture our own

         20  base oil, we also are the only ones that make our

         21  own finished products, so we have total control of

         22  the process from the initial making of the base oil

         23  to adding our own additives and coming out with the

         24  finished product.

         25                 We do sell base oil to other compound

                                                            75

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  blenders, who then make their own oils that they can

          3  sell.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. So, I

          5  guess we're just saying that Safety Clean is like

          6  vertically integrated or whatever, you've got the

          7  whole thing.

          8                 MR. SHEILS: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: With regard to

         10  the price issue when this bill was originally put

         11  forward last session, whenever it was, there was a

         12  15 percent price preference. Staff informs me that

         13  the re-refined motor oil industry has moved forward

         14  and it's competitive with virgin products, and

         15  what's your sense on the -- because to the extent

         16  that we try to put forward legislation that has a

         17  price preference built in, and we just had to cut $6

         18  billion out of the budget, next year we've got to

         19  cut a couple of billion next year. Anything where

         20  the City has to pay more for something is, there's

         21  going to be some reluctance there; so what's your

         22  views on the straight head-to-head price

         23  competitiveness of your re-refined products versus

         24  virgin products?

         25                 MR. IOIA: I can address that as the
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          2  supplier.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Can you just

          4  once again state your name for the record?

          5                 MR. IOIA: Sure. My name is Joseph

          6  Ioia. I'm the owner of Metro Lube, who supplies the

          7  product to the actual agencies through DCAS.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          9                 MR. IOIA: Consistently since about

         10  1998 we have currently always been cheaper than

         11  virgin oil on every bid. So, the price preference or

         12  the issue of spending more money for a recycled

         13  product is just a fallacy. The product is always

         14  cheaper.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good.

         16                 MR. SHEILS: That doesn't mean to say

         17  we wouldn't like the preference.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No.

         19                 MR. SHEILS: Part of that, I guess to

         20  add to that, some states out west, Washington and

         21  Oregon, in specific instances, have issued that

         22  price appreciation so-to-speak to encourage the use

         23  of re-refined oil. But when we do bid on City bid we

         24  bid on competitive basis, the low bidder wins, we

         25  have been able to win these bids.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          3                 Now, do the City bids currently --

          4  I'm still trying to figure out the experience back

          5  in 1997 of DEP where there probably isn't some sort

          6  of, you know, interior product or whatever?

          7                 MR. SHEILS: The only thing I can

          8  think of on that one is if --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If you could

         10  just let me finish --

         11                 MR. SHEILS: Okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm wondering

         13  whether or not the bid specification at that time in

         14  1997 didn't require API standards or API

         15  certification, or something like that; is that how

         16  this whole thing could have happened?

         17                 MR. SOMMER: I'm Mike Sommer and I'm

         18  Vice President of Base Oil and Blended Sales, United

         19  States, for Safety-Kleen Corporation, and ever since

         20  we've been bidding New York City, which is about ten

         21  years now, the product always meets API spec, we've

         22  always met API spec.

         23                 This is the first time I've heard of

         24  any product --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Did they buy the
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          2  oil from you, DEP?

          3                 MR. SOMMER: I don't know who they

          4  purchased the oil from. I don't know if it was

          5  Safety-Kleen's re-refined oil or if there was

          6  somebody else's re-refined oil.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Are you

          8  knowledgeable about the City's specifications for

          9  oil as to whether or not it requires API standards,

         10  API certification?

         11                 MR. SOMMER: It always has. Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It always has?

         13                 MR. SOMMER: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, but that's

         15  bad because if it met API standards and DEP had a

         16  lot of problems and you know.

         17                 MR. SOMMER: Well, our only concern on

         18  that would be if they did have problems we were

         19  never informed, and none of our distributors were

         20  informed, and I can't understand or believe that the

         21  City, as the statement was made, lost three or four

         22  very expensive diesel engines that did not come

         23  after the person who supplied them the product if

         24  they deemed it our problem.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.
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          2                 MR. SOMMER: I mean, I would think if

          3  you lost 75 or 100,000 dollars on three or four

          4  engines, you wouldn't want to be reimbursed for your

          5  lost engines, if it was our product that actually

          6  caused the problem.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          8                 With regard to the City going out to

          9  competitive bid for this type of product, if we were

         10  to require it, I mean usually we would like to --

         11  there are a number of vendors to be in a position to

         12  come forward with the quality product, I mean are

         13  there, you know, sufficient number of vendors out

         14  there that could -- so we could have a real

         15  competitive sort of mix? I guess I'm asking to speak

         16  about your competitors a little bit here.

         17                 MR. SHEILS: Well, as far as the

         18  competition you probably have at least five or six

         19  people bidding it. Independent contractors such as

         20  Mr. Ioia under his distributorship and other

         21  distributors around the City would bid on the

         22  business.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see. So, as

         24  far as you're concerned, there's no shortage of

         25  people who could come to the table and meeting specs
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          2  so we don't have to worry about a shortage of

          3  supply, we don't have to worry about a shortage of

          4  vendors.

          5                 MR. SHEILS: I would think not.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good. Okay,

          7  terrific.

          8                 I'd like to recognize the presence of

          9  Council Member Bill DeBlasio from Brooklyn, a member

         10  of the Committee, who has joined us, our tallest

         11  member. Tall in stature, he's large hearted as well.

         12                 Thank you very much. We're happy to

         13  hear your testimony. Thank you for coming. Have a

         14  safe trip. Who's getting on the plane?

         15                 MR. SOMMER: I am. Thank you for

         16  getting me in early enough.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, you bet.

         18  Thank you.

         19                 Our next witness is Eric Most from

         20  INFORM. And I want to find out also if Ralph

         21  Bombadier -- am I saying that right? From New York

         22  State Association of Service Stations and Repair

         23  Shops. Ralph, are you here? Are you still in the

         24  audience? Not here, okay. Not here.

         25                 Okay, so this will be our last
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          2  witness before we get on to the next topic, which is

          3  the California Clean Air Standard thing.

          4                 Mr. Most, thanks very much.

          5                 MR. MOST: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Donna will swear

          7  you in, and after that please state your name for

          8  the record and proceed with your testimony.

          9                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         10  right hand.

         11                 In the testimony that you're about to

         12  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         13  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         14                 MR. MOST: I do.

         15                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         16                 MR. MOST: I'm Eric Most and I'm the

         17  Director of the Solid Waste Prevention Program at

         18  INFORM. I welcome this opportunity to appear before

         19  you today regarding Intro. 109.

         20                 The purchase of re-refined motor oil

         21  would be a positive step towards environmentally

         22  preferable purchasing for New York City. That is the

         23  purchase of products that are less harmful to human

         24  health in the environment.

         25                 Re-refined motor oil is an example of
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          2  an environmentally preferable product, because it

          3  conserves valuable resources and it keeps used motor

          4  oil out of the environment, thereby reducing

          5  detrimental impacts on essential waterways, the

          6  ground water and the land.

          7                 Purchasing re-refined motor oil also

          8  has a potential to save New York City money in this

          9  time of economic need.

         10                 As Ms. Kenny earlier indicated, many

         11  tests have shown that American Petroleum Institute

         12  certified re-refined oil is of equal or better

         13  quality than oil made from a virgin base stock. API

         14  licensed re-refined oil must pass the same cold

         15  start and pumpability tests, rust corrosion, engine

         16  wear, high temperature viscosity and deposit and

         17  phosphorous tests that virgin oils do.

         18                 Importantly, extensive laboratory

         19  testing and field studies conducted by the National

         20  Bureau of Standards, the US Army, the Department of

         21  Energy, the US Post Office and the US Environmental

         22  Protection Agency and experience of the users of

         23  re-refined motor oil indicate that re-refined motor

         24  oil provides a high-quality base stock that is

         25  virtually indistinguishable and equivalent to

                                                            83

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  appearance and quality to its virgin counterparts,

          3  and that it occasionally even out-performs virgin

          4  oil. And also in response to an earlier statement,

          5  Ford, General Motors, Chrysler, Caterpillar and

          6  Detroit Diesel have all issued written statements

          7  explaining that the use of re-refined motor oil will

          8  not void their warranties.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I don't want to

         10  interrupt, I've just got to jump in right there,

         11  because we've heard testimony that Detroit Diesel is

         12  on sort of a band wagon against the use of

         13  re-refined oils. Now, is this even for the CI

         14  requirements or whatever?

         15                 MR. MOST: I really can't speak to

         16  those new engines coming out because I think to many

         17  of us here today that's a new issue.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         19                 MR. MOST: But I know in the past,

         20  they have indicated that as long as the refined oil

         21  is API certified, it shouldn't void the warranties.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, sorry.

         23                 Please continue.

         24                 MR. MOST: Environmentally preferable

         25  purchasing can be a cost-saving measure for New York
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          2  City and would address many of the City's

          3  environmental concerns.

          4                 Environmentally preferable purchasing

          5  means purchasing products with recycled content,

          6  products that contain fewer toxic chemicals and

          7  products that produce less waste. Moreover,

          8  environmentally preferable purchasing is required by

          9  City law.

         10                 In terms of the purchase of

         11  re-refined oil by DCAS, this would be a measure of

         12  environmentally preferable purchasing.

         13                 The purchase of re-refined oil has

         14  the following benefits for human health, the

         15  environment and energy security.

         16                 Purchasing re-refined motor oil saves

         17  energy as a valuable resource. Purchasing re-refined

         18  motor oil also assists in the reduction of air

         19  pollution because is recycled rather than disposed

         20  of through burning.

         21                 Purchasing re-refined motor oil

         22  creates a market for used oil and encourages

         23  consumers and businesses alike to properly store and

         24  recycle their waste oil, rather than dumping it down

         25  the drain and contaminating the environment.
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          2                 It also prevents oil from entering

          3  rivers, streams and lakes and protects our drinking

          4  water by keeping oil out of groundwater supplies.

          5                 Finally, the use of re-refined motor

          6  oil reduces our dependence on foreign oil. In terms

          7  of other government agencies that have been using

          8  re-refined oil, the US Post Office has been using it

          9  for nearly a decade of its fleet of almost 73,000

         10  vehicles. The State of Vermont has used re-refined

         11  motor oil for over seven years and is very happy

         12  with its performance.

         13                 The City of Chicago is using

         14  re-refined motor oil for its entire fleet, and that

         15  includes police vehicles and fire vehicles.

         16                 Finally, in terms of cost, many users

         17  of re-refined motor oil purchase re-refined motor

         18  oils as the same price as virgin oil. However, the

         19  cost of re-refined motor oil purchased in bulk can

         20  be significantly less than that of comparable virgin

         21  oil. Government agencies in Massachusetts and

         22  Minnesota have been purchasing re-refined oil at

         23  prices below those of virgin oil.

         24                 Additionally, these users can save on

         25  waste disposal costs, since they are paid for their
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          2  used oil after its use.

          3                 INFORM will be happy to work with

          4  DCAS and provide bid specifications and information

          5  on some of these products, and we're actually

          6  looking forward to doing that.

          7                 I appreciate your cooperation and

          8  having me here today.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Most.

         11                 I was just thinking, you kind of took

         12  the words right out of my mouth, because you have

         13  all the bid specifications, you've done the research

         14  on all of those entities which are using the

         15  re-refined products, and I think INFORM can be a

         16  valuable resource --

         17                 MR. MOST: We would love to do that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- To DCAS, and

         19  they may have to go to you, because once we pass

         20  this law they will have to get educated real quick

         21  on how to do this and do this very effectively.

         22  You've heard all of the testimony since you've been

         23  here since the outset?

         24                 MR. MOST: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Anything that
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          2  you wish to comment on that you heard that hasn't

          3  been sort of like fully put to rest? I think we

          4  talked about the supply issue, we talked about the

          5  supply of the product, we talked about the supply of

          6  the vendors, the price, the quality, if we do the

          7  API certification. Am I leaving anything out here?

          8  Any other environmental benefits that we can sort of

          9  point to here? Just to kind of pile on. Pile on, go

         10  ahead.

         11                 MR. MOST: Pile on? Again, to conserve

         12  land, land resources, the energy savings, to reduce

         13  dependence on foreign oil, all these things have

         14  been said, but they are very important. I think if

         15  you take the current proposal and you tweak it

         16  slightly to indicate that the product has to be API

         17  licensed and you ensure that it's of the same

         18  quality, you ensure that the supply is out there, I

         19  don't think you'll have any problems.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Mr. Most,

         21  thank you very much.

         22                 MR. MOST: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Give my best to

         24  Joanne and everybody back at INFORM.

         25                 MR. MOST: I will.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And sit by the

          3  phone because we're going to be calling you, okay?

          4                 MR. MOST: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thanks a

          6  lot.

          7                 Okay, we're going to sort of phase 2

          8  of our hearing. I want to thank everyone who was

          9  here for the part of the hearing about the

         10  re-refined motor oil, particularly Cathy Kenny who

         11  gave testimony on this, we appreciate you being

         12  here.

         13                 But now we're going on to the next

         14  item on the agenda. I'm looking for my original

         15  opening statement, Resolution 439. Those of you who

         16  had been here since the beginning of the hearing

         17  know that this is a resolution that would call upon

         18  New York State and the Governor to adopt the

         19  California Clean Air Standards that were signed into

         20  law in July by Gray Davis, the Governor of the State

         21  of California. Although these standards haven't been

         22  fully worked out yet, what the California

         23  legislation did is to direct the Air Resources Board

         24  of the State of California to come up with standards

         25  that would reduce greenhouse gases. In order to
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          2  reduce greenhouse gases, you have to reduce the

          3  amount of fuel used per mile burn that would have

          4  the indirect effect of increasing fuel efficiency,

          5  which is a good thing. You get kind of a multiplier

          6  effect, because if you're using less fuel per

          7  vehicle mile traveled, all the other pollutants that

          8  would come from gas would be reduced as well.

          9                 California, though, as we've been

         10  following clean air issues through the decades, know

         11  that California has been given the authority to do

         12  clean air standards, at least in some cases separate

         13  and apart from the federal government, and that

         14  special distinction has been carried over to other

         15  states and that we can, that is, other states can

         16  adopt California Clean Air standards if they see

         17  fit. This is to avoid a situation where you have 50

         18  states and 50 different clean air standards. So

         19  there is the federal standards and the California

         20  standards and all states are free to adopt which of

         21  those it would like to do so, and New York State has

         22  been a leader in other areas, and we've followed

         23  California's lead, that is to say in other areas

         24  with regard to emissions from vehicles. We think

         25  it's a prudent step that New York State do this. My
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          2  counterpart in the State Assembly, Tom DiNapoli, who

          3  chairs the Committee on Environmental Conservation,

          4  has put forward a bill that would seek to do this.

          5  This is a resolution in support of Tom DiNapoli's

          6  bill or any other legislation that would accomplish

          7  the same purpose. So, that just sort of sets the

          8  stage for the next segment of the hearing, and we

          9  have a couple of great witnesses who will speak to

         10  this.

         11                 I'd also like to recognize the

         12  presence of Council Member Jennings from my

         13  neighboring district who wishes to make a statement

         14  before we call our first witness. So, I'll recognize

         15  Council Member Jennings briefly to make a statement.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Thank you,

         17  Mr. Chairman.

         18                 I'm just reading a letter dated to

         19  you today from Assistant Commissioner Susan Petito,

         20  I was wondering about the validity of her statement

         21  saying that emergency service vehicles won't be

         22  warrantied under the contracts if we require them to

         23  use recycled oil, and I don't know if there's anyone

         24  here to comment on that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure, I'd be
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          2  happy to speak to that myself. That was covered in

          3  great detail in the earlier part of the hearing

          4  which was the Intro. 109 for the re-recycled motor

          5  oil fuel. That part of the hearing is essentially

          6  over, and so we can't go into it in detail now.

          7  Cathy Kenny from API, which is the American

          8  Petroleum Institute, is still here and she'd be

          9  happy, if you want to engage her like in a side

         10  conversation, but that's like the previous part of

         11  the hearing which is ended, now we're moving on into

         12  Resolution --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: My concern

         14  is on the fiscal issues.  I mean, is it possible to

         15  amend this bill to exempt police vehicles and

         16  emergency vehicles?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We don't think

         18  that that's really going to be necessary to do. We

         19  have to take a look at that. Certainly we stated on

         20  the record, myself and Council Member Vallone, that

         21  this Committee and this Council never do anything to

         22  compromise the ability of the Police Department and

         23  the Fire Department to carry out their mission, but

         24  again that's the part of the hearing which is

         25  essentially over now, and so we're moving into the
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          2  next part. Your statements are all related to Intro.

          3  109, now we've sort of made the transition to the

          4  part of the hearing where we're going to speak to

          5  Resolution 439.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: I take it

          7  that's a yes?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What? What's a

          9  yes?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: My question

         11  is, as a committee we have a big responsibility --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You bet.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: And the

         14  responsibility is to make sure that our City is safe

         15  and our emergency vehicles can respond to

         16  emergencies without breaking down and the City save

         17  money. So, is that a yes that we're going to amend

         18  this Intro. 109 to exempt emergency vehicles?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do I look like

         20  the kind of guy who's going to leave the police and

         21  firefighters hanging out to dry?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: I'm just

         23  asking a question, sir.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm just --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: It's a yes
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          2  or a no.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: This was

          4  discussed in detail at the earlier part of the

          5  hearing. We don't know what we're going to do on

          6  that. The statement which I, as Chairman, and I

          7  think I speak for everyone on the Committee, this

          8  Committee and this Council will do nothing to

          9  compromise an iota the ability of the Fire

         10  Department and the Police Department to carry out

         11  its mission. That's one thing that everyone agrees

         12  upon. We agree upon it, they agree upon it, and so

         13  we are not going to compromise the mission of the

         14  Fire Department or Police Department. There are

         15  heavy duty vehicles and police and fire vehicles

         16  that use these re-recycled oil throughout the

         17  country and so we're going to do what makes sense

         18  with regard to the environment and what makes sense

         19  regarding the economics and what makes sense

         20  regarding to making sure that the police and fire

         21  vehicles are not compromised in any way.

         22                 Now, what that's ultimately going to

         23  result in, I don't know, but we really have to move

         24  to the next part of the hearing because that part of

         25  the hearing is closed.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chairman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

          5  Council Member Jennings.

          6                 Council Member DeBlasio I understand

          7  wants 30 seconds. I'm going to give him 39, because

          8  his district number is 39 I believe.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Very

         10  creative.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, you can have

         12  39 seconds.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chairman. I want to say that what Gray Davis did

         15  in California was extremely courageous and really I

         16  wish President Bush were on Governor Davis' level,

         17  and you are courageous and forward looking to have

         18  moved this legislation to committee so quickly in

         19  our term and I want to thank you.

         20                 I won't be able to stay too much

         21  longer but this matters immensely to our City and I

         22  want to thank you for your leadership.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         24  much, Council Member DeBlasio. It's a pleasure to

         25  have you here.
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          2                 And, so, we will call our first

          3  witness on Reso 439. Dr. Cynthia Rosenzweig. Am I

          4  saying that right?

          5                 DR. ROSENZWEIG: Rosenzweig.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Rosenzweig. I

          7  was going to say Rosenzweig. My lawyer told me to

          8  say Rosenzweig. And Marc Brammer of New York Climate

          9  Rescue.  And Dr. Rosenzweig is from the Goddard

         10  Institute for Space Studies.

         11                 Okay, so, we're happy to have you

         12  here. Okay, thank you both for coming. I just want

         13  to say that we have one hour before we have to turn

         14  the room over to the next group, so we're going to

         15  sprint here, okay? Who's in shape? Who's in shape

         16  here for a sprint? We're going to do what we can, a

         17  lot of great testimony in a short amount of time,

         18  and so we thank you for your indulgence in that

         19  regard.

         20                 Donna will do the honors and place

         21  you under oath, and if you could please identify

         22  yourselves for the record and proceed with your

         23  testimony, we're honored to have you here today.

         24  Thanks for taking the time to come before us today.

         25                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your
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          2  right hand.

          3                 In the testimony that you're about to

          4  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          5  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          6                 MR. BRAMMER: I do.

          7                 DR. ROSENZWEIG: I do.

          8                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         10  much. Please identify yourselves for the record and

         11  proceed with your good testimony.

         12                 MR. BRAMMER: Good morning. Thank you

         13  for having us here. My name is Marc Brammer, and I

         14  am a co-founder of New York --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If you collect

         16  the mic and speak right into it, it will work out

         17  better.

         18                 MR. BRAMMER: Sorry. Again, sorry.

         19  Thank you very much for having us here. My name is

         20  Marc Brammer. I am a co-founder of New York Climate

         21  Rescue, and this is a citizen-based group trying to

         22  make New York City a more climate-friendly city.

         23                 DR. ROSENZWEIG: I'm Dr. Cynthia

         24  Rosenzweig. I'm the Senior Researcher at NASA

         25  Goddard Institute for Space Studies and Columbia
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          2  University, and co-leader of the Metropolitan East

          3  Coast Regional Assessment of Climate Variability and

          4  Climate Change.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Welcome. Thank

          6  you both very much for being here and we greatly

          7  appreciate your testimony. I'll let you two decide

          8  which one is going to go first.

          9                 If you need my lawyer, she's right

         10  here. She can work it out with you. Okay, you need a

         11  coin?

         12                 MR. BRAMMER: No, no. We figured it

         13  out.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Settle out of

         15  court, okay.

         16                 MR. BRAMMER: All right. Well, what

         17  I'd like to do is maybe set the tone here for why it

         18  is that we're all in this room discussing this issue

         19  in the first place, and I'm going to read very

         20  quickly from the executive summary, because I think

         21  that does that best.

         22                 The third assessment report of the UN

         23  Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, Climate

         24  Change 2001, the scientific basis, concludes that

         25  there is now stronger evidence that the most, most
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          2  of the observed warming observed over the past 50

          3  years is attributable to human activities. The

          4  global average surface temperature has increased

          5  since 1861. Over the 20th century the increase has

          6  been about .6 degrees Celsius, that's roughly one

          7  degree Fahrenheit. Both temperature and sea level

          8  are projected to continue to rise throughout the

          9  21st century for all scenarios studied. Emissions of

         10  greenhouse gases and aerosols due to human

         11  activities continue to alter the atmosphere in ways

         12  that are expected to affect the climate. That's the

         13  IPC receiver port of 2001.

         14                 According to a science panel convened

         15  by the White House last summer, which examined the

         16  results of the IPCC report, average global

         17  temperatures are projected to rise by 2.5 to 10.4

         18  degrees Fahrenheit by the end of this century.

         19                 To illustrate the magnitude that this

         20  change represents, the most recent ice age resulted

         21  from an eight degree C or 22.4 degrees Fahrenheit

         22  change, that's roughly half the difference, in the

         23  global average temperatures.

         24                 I direct you to figure 2 on page 4 of

         25  my testimony.
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          2                 The work of the IPCC has been

          3  certified by the United Nations Environmental

          4  Program, the United States Environmental Protection

          5  Agency, the National Academy of Sciences, the White

          6  House, the European Science Foundation and many

          7  other august international scientific and

          8  governmental bodies. The studies of the earth

          9  climates and its affects that humans are having on

         10  it comprises one of the largest scientific studies

         11  ever conducted in human history.

         12                 The frightening conclusions drawn by

         13  the IPC and others indicate strongly that the time

         14  for debate is over. We must begin to act now and act

         15  boldly on the implications of these scientific

         16  studies.

         17                 So, very quickly, I'm going to just

         18  go through the basis of my testimony.

         19                 What you're looking at here, and this

         20  is on page four of the testimony, is the past

         21  420,000 years of climate history, looking at the

         22  temperature variations and corresponding C02

         23  concentrations in the atmosphere.

         24                 As you can see, there's quite a

         25  relative correlation there. Those concentrations of
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          2  C02 have historically over this time period for

          3  which human beings have a record, fluctuated between

          4  180 parts per million and 280 parts per million.

          5                 The panel, I would direct the panel

          6  to page five, figure 3. If you look at the current

          7  concentrations in the atmosphere, we are now at just

          8  over 370 parts per million. So the difference

          9  between an ice age and a non, and a temperate period

         10  in our historical climate, is roughly a hundred

         11  parts per million. We have now added an additional

         12  hundred parts per million into the atmosphere. This

         13  would imply that their atmosphere now has enough

         14  energy holding capacity to generate an ice age

         15  magnitude warming event, and it doesn't stop there.

         16                 The evidence, I'm going to point to

         17  figure 5, on page 6, that shows the thousand-year

         18  history of temperature. Once you get to the

         19  industrial evolution, when human beings started to

         20  burn a lot more fossil fuels and put C02 into the

         21  atmosphere, you can see very clearly that there's a

         22  demonstrated rise in average, global average

         23  temperature. And I've also included on figure 4

         24  emissions scenarios put together by the IPCC report

         25  that I mentioned earlier.
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          2                 So, in a best case scenario, we will

          3  stabilize C02 concentrations at 550 parts per

          4  million, that's almost two and a half times

          5  historical average.

          6                 Given what we know about the

          7  relationship between C02 concentrations in the

          8  atmosphere, and global climate, this would imply

          9  that, you know, within 150 years, I think it's easy

         10  enough to say that it's very likely that New York

         11  City may not be a viable place to live, given global

         12  climate variability. And to indicate that, if you

         13  see figure 6 on page 6 -- sorry, that actually

         14  popped over to the next page, that shows where

         15  temperature is going. Here, I'll actually put that

         16  up on the screen. This shows the projected

         17  temperature rises of various scenarios by the IPCC.

         18                 Now, I have heard no scientific

         19  testimony saying which one of those scenarios,

         20  either the low or the high, is the most certain.

         21  There is no scientific basis to say that the worst

         22  case scenario, and given current emissions scenarios

         23  that are current, it's quite likely, there is

         24  nothing that says that the worst case scenario could

         25  not happen in this case. There is no more -- i.e.,
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          2  any one of these scenarios is most likely. So, I

          3  would like to conclude with that and maybe pass it

          4  over to my colleague here at that time.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          7  you very much. Thank you.

          8                 By the way, obviously you've been

          9  following climate change for a long time.

         10                 MR. BRAMMER: I have indeed.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon?

         12                 MR. BRAMMER: I have indeed.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         14                 I have a degree in geology from SUNY

         15  Stonybrook --

         16                 MR. BRAMMER: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- 1979. And we

         18  read a book, I read a book in '77 or '78 by Steve

         19  Schneider. Is he still in the climate business? He

         20  is. He must be a little older now, right?

         21                 DR. ROSENZWEIG: Little bit older, but

         22  he's still --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But he was like

         24  a pioneer.

         25                 DR. ROSENZWEIG: -- Major scientist in
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          2  the issue.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We read his book

          4  and back when, no one knew what was going on back

          5  then, and so Steve Schneider is still in the climate

          6  change business?

          7                 DR. ROSENZWEIG: Yes, he is.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, great. I

          9  read his book. Tell him I read it.

         10                 Okay, thank you.

         11                 DR. ROSENZWEIG: What I'd like to

         12  speak to in my testimony is what the global issue of

         13  global warming has in terms of implications for New

         14  York City and the New York metropolitan region, and

         15  I'd like to report on the -- it's called the "Metro

         16  East Coast Assessment," which was conducted over the

         17  period 1998 to 2001 by a group of researchers from

         18  universities in the New York region, led by the

         19  Columbia University Earth Institute, and stakeholder

         20  partners from relevant agencies, including Port

         21  Authority of New York and New Jersey, the Army Corps

         22  of Engineers, FEMA Region II, Gateway National

         23  Recreation Area, New York State Department of

         24  Environmental Conservation, Southeastern New York

         25  Intergovernmental Water Supply Advisory Council, New

                                                            104

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  York City Department of Health, New York State

          3  Energy Research and Development Authority, and the

          4  USEPA Region II. And with this team of researchers

          5  and stakeholders, we examined using a range of

          6  observed and projected climate information, using

          7  scenarios based on the same models that went into

          8  the Intergovernmental Panel Report on how the -- how

          9  climate will affect our coasts, infrastructure,

         10  wetlands, water supply, public health and energy

         11  demand.

         12                 While uncertainties remain in the

         13  quantification and timing of impacts, that's why we

         14  always have to look at that range, such as the exact

         15  change in drinking water supplies or the amount or

         16  sea level rise by the 2080s, the trajectory and

         17  character of the projected changes are well

         18  understood, and these are the main things that we

         19  found.

         20                 First, that there will be sea level

         21  rise and coastal flooding. The greatest threat to

         22  the New York Metropolitan Region and New York City

         23  in particular due to global warming is sea level

         24  rise and the associated enhancement of flooding

         25  during coastal storms.
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          2                 Given projected rates of sea level

          3  rise, flooding associated with the current climate's

          4  100-year storm, this is the worst storm that we have

          5  in 100 years, this could now -- that in the coming

          6  century and the last decades of our century, this

          7  100, this storm of that strength could occur on the

          8  order of every 40 to in the very worst case, which

          9  is what my colleague mentions at the very top of

         10  that, could occur every four years in the worst case

         11  scenario.

         12                 Many of the region's most significant

         13  infrastructure facilities will be at significantly

         14  increased risk to damage resulting from augmented

         15  flood.

         16                 Second major conclusion is that

         17  drinking water supplies will be challenged. Climate

         18  change presents challenges for our region's water

         19  supply, due to the potential for intensified

         20  hydrologic regimes as the decades progress.  A

         21  warmer climate is likely to bring both more droughts

         22  and more floods, due to the increased water-holding

         23  capacity and the volatility of the warming air.

         24                 While it is difficult to associate

         25  any particular regional climate trend that we've
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          2  been having already to global environmental change,

          3  the recent droughts in our region, often times

          4  punctuated by the severe rain events, are indicative

          5  of the climate change projections brought forward by

          6  our assessment.

          7                 The next major results is surprises

          8  and interactions. As results from the individual

          9  sectors were analyzed, it became clear that climate

         10  change impacts in New York will be simultaneous,

         11  multi-dimensional and interactive. We can't just

         12  look at it sector-by-sector. In a city everything

         13  happens at once.

         14                 For example, sea level rise may

         15  affect drinking water, through salt water intrusion

         16  in pumping stations and water and sewage treatment

         17  plants. Loss of coastal wetlands will exacerbate

         18  flooding because that buffering capacity will be

         19  lost. Public health effects will be also seen and

         20  Dr. Pat Kinney, who was the leader of the health

         21  sector, is going to testify so I won't speak about

         22  health, other than to say the final conclusion,

         23  which is that there are differential vulnerabilities

         24  across our City.

         25                 Climate change will not affect every
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          2  neighborhood and every group in the region the same.

          3  Effects on the citizens of Coney Island will not be

          4  the same as effects on Battery Park City, and why is

          5  that? It's because in terms of response and coping

          6  capacity there are differences among our

          7  socioeconomic groups.

          8                 And Pat will also be speaking to the

          9  vulnerability, particularly of the elderly and the

         10  poor, in terms of heat stress and respiratory

         11  problems.

         12                 In conclusion, as defined by the

         13  Metropolitan East Coast Assessment, the complex

         14  nature of the potential climate change impacts poses

         15  a tremendous challenge to New York City.

         16                 New York City can play an important

         17  national and international leadership role enacting

         18  to slow and lessen the impacts of global climate

         19  change.  Reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases

         20  from motor vehicles will be an important step in

         21  addressing the root cause of the climate change

         22  issue.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         24  much. I appreciate it.

         25                 I don't want to put words in your
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          2  mouth, but I'd say that you're for the resolution?

          3  You support it?

          4                 DR. ROSENZWEIG: I am in favor of the

          5  resolution.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I figured that,

          7  I just want to draw that out.

          8                 Yes, well, thank you for your

          9  testimony and for the materials, for making the case

         10  so much more eloquently than I could make it about

         11  the need for every jurisdiction to do what it can on

         12  the C02 and global warming and climate change, and I

         13  was just wondering the extent to which, in sort of

         14  like real terms, in real numbers the amount of C02

         15  that we will cut back on in New York State, sort of

         16  like the practical impact of that. I mean, we're

         17  like one state, world is kind of a big place, drop

         18  in the bucket kind of sentiment can sort of come to

         19  mind, but, you know, certainly better to light a

         20  candle than curse the darkness, but, you know, some

         21  people say this is like a symbolic thing and what

         22  can one state do in like the fight against, you

         23  know, climate, against global warming and climate

         24  change. But to the extent that you and other

         25  witnesses can speak to some of the other benefits
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          2  and some of the other, you know, environmental

          3  multipliers that would come out of New York adopting

          4  the strictest, you know, C02 standards. Because

          5  there are other things that come with it. It's not

          6  only less C02, you know, it's like less fuel burned

          7  overall, other kinds of pollutants, and so on, so

          8  I'm just really trying to put, you know, get a real

          9  feel as to sort of like the practical effect that

         10  this will have right here in New York State, as well

         11  as whatever small measure we can do for global

         12  climate change. So, you know, keep that in mind as

         13  people come forward to testify.

         14                 MR. BRAMMER: Well, I could speak to

         15  that quickly.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please.

         17                 MR. BRAMMER: According to the EPA,

         18  the transportation sector is roughly, I think I have

         19  it here as 26 percent of US C02 emissions, and

         20  passenger cars and vehicles are a major portion of

         21  that. By adopting these standards, really the

         22  question is, at this point it's a policy issue. It's

         23  about creating the economic markets for the new

         24  technologies.

         25                 California is the largest market.
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          2  It's, I mean it's one of the largest markets in the

          3  world, never mind the United States. So, New York is

          4  also high among that ratio in terms of its

          5  population and the cars it buys. If those two states

          6  were to take these steps, that would create a much

          7  larger market total for these technologies, which

          8  would make it much easier for other states.

          9                 So, essentially what we would be

         10  doing is addressing this at a national level through

         11  the states, by creating a market that then the auto

         12  makers can then have the economic incentives to

         13  supply, and that's really where this is going, and

         14  then you're addressing one of the largest emissions

         15  of C02 by the United States right there.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Great. Okay,

         17  thank you both very much. I really appreciate your

         18  being here, and giving us the benefit of your views.

         19  Say hi to Steve Schneider for me.

         20                 And the next group of witnesses,

         21  we're going to have a panel. Everyone can come up,

         22  I've got a four-person panel. Theo Spencer of the

         23  Natural Resources Defense Council; Norma Ramos of

         24  the Sierra Club; Juliet Burdelski of INFORM, and Val

         25  Washington of Environmental Advocates.
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          2                 Okay, I'm just kind of collecting the

          3  testimony here. We have a couple of written

          4  statements. Thank you all very much for coming. I

          5  appreciate having you here today.

          6                 Okay, thank you all very much for

          7  being here. I appreciate your patience. Donna

          8  DeCostanzo will administer our friendly oath here

          9  and then we'll proceed.

         10                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         11  right hand. In the testimony that you're about to

         12  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         13  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         14                 MS. RAMOS: I do.

         15                 MS. WASHINGTON: I do.

         16                 MR. SPENCER: I do.

         17                 MS. BURDELSKI: I do.

         18                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all

         20  very much. I appreciate you all being here.

         21                 I don't have a specific order of the

         22  witnesses, so to the extent that you have an order

         23  that kind of works for you, does anybody want to

         24  testify first? Don't be shy. Okay, then please

         25  identify yourself for the record and proceed with

                                                            112

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  your testimony.

          3                 MR. SPENCER: My name is Theo Spencer,

          4  and I'm a Project Manager with --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, is the mic

          6  on?

          7                 MR. SPENCER: Is that better?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, you've got

          9  to speak like right into it.

         10                 MR. SPENCER: Okay. My name is Theo

         11  Spencer, and I'm a project manager with the Natural

         12  Resources Defense Council. I work at the Climate

         13  Center.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: As I mentioned,

         15  of course I haven't seen the statements yet, but to

         16  the extent that people can try to speak to not to

         17  just the global issue, but sort of the specific

         18  practical effect that this will have for New York

         19  City and New York State and, you know, so many

         20  environmental multipliers that might come out of

         21  this, because we all are somewhat knowledgeable

         22  about sort of like the global picture, although it's

         23  always helpful to get more information on that as

         24  well. But, you know, to the extent that we can speak

         25  to the local impact, that would be great, too, okay?
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          2                 MR. SPENCER: Okay.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Spencer.

          5                 MR. SPENCER: Thank you. I'll try and

          6  keep this short.

          7                 Thanks for the opportunity to speak

          8  today. As you know, we've been working at NRDC on

          9  these issues for close to 30 years and in keeping

         10  with that commitment, we appreciate the opportunity

         11  to speak strongly in favor of Resolution 439.

         12                 As I said, I'm a project manager at

         13  NRDC's climate center, and the climate center is a

         14  new program area at NRDC which was specifically

         15  created to address the threat posed by global

         16  warming. And we at NRDC are especially appreciative

         17  of Resolution No. 439 because staffers in our San

         18  Francisco office worked hard to help pass the

         19  California Clean Cars Act, which you alluded to

         20  earlier, upon which Assemblyman DiNapoli's bill is

         21  based, and today our lawyers are working with other

         22  public interest groups to vigorously defend

         23  California's authority under the federal Clean Air

         24  Act to control sources of global warming pollution

         25  and other state's authority to adopt California

                                                            114

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  vehicle standards to improve air quality, in other

          3  words, New York.

          4                 As your resolution recognizes, global

          5  warming is a serious problem and one that could have

          6  potentially devastating impacts on the health and

          7  welfare of New York and New Yorkers, vehicles are a

          8  big part of the problem. The transportation sector

          9  currently produces about a third of the total

         10  emissions of global warming pollution in our state.

         11  The good news is that we have the technology today

         12  to start solving this problem. We have the

         13  technology to build vehicles that both meet consumer

         14  needs and produce fewer global warming pollutants.

         15                 Just in addition, I just passed out a

         16  visual aid there with a Ford Explorer which shows

         17  the various ways in which we can make improvements

         18  to vehicles.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, this one?

         20                 MR. SPENCER: That's it, yes.

         21                 Advances in engine and transmission

         22  design, as well as improved aerodynamics and better

         23  tires are all available today, and that all means

         24  reduced carbon dioxide pollution. Detroit's Big

         25  Three you already know, sorry, are already slowly
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          2  moving in the right direction. Ford, GM and

          3  Daimler/Chrysler have all announced plans to produce

          4  fuel-efficient hybrid SUV's that emit less carbon

          5  pollution within the next few years. And enacting

          6  Assemblyman DiNapoli's bill would simply accelerate

          7  that process and ensure that consumers have real

          8  choices for cleaner cars in a broad range of

          9  vehicles.

         10                 However, though the Big Three have

         11  argued that emissions controls would cripple their

         12  business, California has cut smog-forming pollution

         13  from passenger vehicles more than 90 percent over

         14  the years without hurting sales. Car companies today

         15  are offering more vehicle choices than ever before.

         16  That trend will speed up if the California Clean

         17  Cars Act and its sister bill in New York become law.

         18                 Passing our own version of the Clean

         19  Cars Act would help maintain the leadership position

         20  that New York has established in cleaning up

         21  pollution from vehicles. New York, as you know, is

         22  one of the few states that has adopted California's

         23  Low Emission Vehicle standards. And for New York,

         24  that means ten percent of all the cars sold in the

         25  state must be zero-emissions or low-emissions
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          2  vehicles by 2004. It's also important for New York

          3  to act now to curb global warming, because federal

          4  action on this front, especially when it comes to

          5  vehicles, continues to be stymied by beltway

          6  politics as usual. This summer 11 State Attorneys

          7  General, including New York's Attorney General

          8  Elliot Spitzer urged President Bush to start

          9  addressing the problem of global warming. They said

         10  the White House vacuum is forcing the states to act

         11  in place of the federal government. The result, they

         12  said, would be patchwork regulation, slower results

         13  and higher costs. As in past pollution battles, as

         14  previous speakers had alluded to, increasing action

         15  at the state level will raise pressure on Washington

         16  to step in and act more aggressively.

         17                 Just and one additional note, while

         18  we strongly support the Council's resolution, we

         19  respectfully ask that you take another step to bring

         20  cleaner vehicles to New York City streets.

         21  Specifically we asked you to schedule a hearing and

         22  consider legislation that would commit the City's

         23  transit and school buses, sanitation trucks and

         24  construction equipment to alternative fuels like

         25  natural gas and other state-of-the-art emissions
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          2  controls, given the City's chronically high levels

          3  of particulate matter and summertime ozone, taking

          4  such steps is critical.  In particular, NRDC is

          5  extremely troubled by reports that the Department of

          6  Transportation wishes to move away from its historic

          7  CNG bus policy and we strongly urge the Council to

          8  investigate this matter further.

          9                 Thank you very much for your time.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 What we'll do is we'll have all of

         13  the witnesses on the panel present testimony, and

         14  then when I and my colleagues ask questions, anyone

         15  who wished to field it can take the question, but

         16  I'll get back to you on the issue with DOT when we

         17  get to the questioning phase.

         18                 Welcome. Thanks very much. Please

         19  identify yourself for the record, and proceed with

         20  your testimony.

         21                 MS. WASHINGTON: Good afternoon. Thank

         22  you very much for the opportunity to testify today.

         23  My name is Val Washington, I'm an Executive Director

         24  of Environmental Advocates of New York. It's a

         25  statewide environmental advocacy group that focuses
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          2  on --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Everybody knows

          4  that. Who doesn't know that?

          5                 MS. WASHINGTON: Thank you. We try to

          6  help shape New York State policy, as you know.

          7                 In a previous life I was with the

          8  Attorney General's Office, both with Attorney

          9  General Robert Abrams and with Attorney General

         10  Oliver Koppell. Good morning, General -- afternoon,

         11  I mean. And there I oversaw the litigation in which

         12  automobile manufacturers challenged New York's

         13  adoption of the California standards. Unsuccessfully

         14  challenged, I should say, in four different

         15  lawsuits, in those cases we were talking about

         16  ground level pollution, mainly lung-damaging ozone,

         17  and now we're talking about a different, also

         18  sinister result of automobile pollution, but as has

         19  been described, it is different. The C02 initiative

         20  in California passed this summer, and we applaud

         21  Assembly Member DiNapoli for initiating legislation

         22  to replicate that, as we have the previous

         23  California Clean Car Standards. Environmental

         24  advocacy was part of the Governor's Greenhouse Gas

         25  Task Force, which deliberated with the course of a
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          2  year, looked at, did a lot of data gathering and

          3  analysis, concluded its work in June, and in that

          4  task force we were looking for opportunities for the

          5  State to do something about global warming and we

          6  saw many, many opportunities. Primary among them is

          7  reduction of carbon from power plants. That's where

          8  we can get the most bang for the buck, huge emission

          9  reductions really, as we're bringing in clean power,

         10  closing down some of the old dinosaurs or cleaning

         11  them up.

         12                 The second biggest bang for the buck

         13  would be from automobiles, and having tighter C02

         14  standards. The National Academy of Sciences tells us

         15  that we can, using currently available technology,

         16  economically viable, cost-effective technology, we

         17  can reduce the C02 from automobiles from 30 to 40

         18  percent, and the public is ready for it too.

         19                 On the eve of Gray Davis', Governor

         20  of California, signing the California initiative, a

         21  poll in California showed 81 percent of the public

         22  saying this is a good idea, that automobile

         23  manufacturers should be put to this test.

         24                 So, again, we applaud Assemblymember

         25  DiNapoli, the sponsors of this resolution. We would
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          2  also urge that this, that New York City Council

          3  consider adopting resolution urging a carbon cap on

          4  power plants.

          5                 In response to your question,

          6  Councilman, on the other benefits of this resolution

          7  in New York adopting this, we find from polling

          8  results and focus groups that the public is aware

          9  that global warming is a terrible, terrible problem,

         10  but they also feel it's overwhelming, and they feel

         11  there's nothing we can do about it. And the fact

         12  that our federal government has been recalcitrant on

         13  the issue just makes it seem that much more

         14  hopeless. And what this Council is hoping to do is

         15  make it clear that there are things we can do. We

         16  can do them in the local level, we can do them in

         17  the State level, we can do them in our individual

         18  lives. I think that is an important message. Also, I

         19  think another benefit is New York has been a leader

         20  historically on environmental issues, and its

         21  leadership can mean a lot for the entire nation, and

         22  will chart a path for on this to follow.

         23                 Thank you for allowing me to testify.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         25  much. Thank you very much. Please identify yourself

                                                            121

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  for the record. When the light is off, it's on. Off

          3  means on. Light off, microphone on.

          4                 MS. BURDELSKI: Okay, can you hear me?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And you've got

          6  to speak right in. Just like I'm doing right now,

          7  just like this.

          8                 MS. RAMOS: Okay. Good morning,

          9  Councilman, Chairman Gennaro and members of the City

         10  Council. My name is Norma Ramos, I am the New York

         11  City Senior Regional Representative of the Sierra

         12  Club. The Sierra Club is this nation's oldest and

         13  largest environmental organization. Today I appear

         14  before you to offer testimony in support of

         15  Resolution 439.

         16                 This Resolution calls upon New York

         17  State to act, as California recently did, to take

         18  seriously the threat posed by global warming by

         19  requiring reductions in tail pipe emissions of

         20  greenhouse gases, specifically carbon dioxide or C02

         21  emissions.

         22                 For more than a decade now Sierra

         23  Club has maintained that this goal is readily

         24  achievable with existing technology, which is by the

         25  way improving all the time.
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          2                 This technology can save as much as 3

          3  million gallons of oil per day. Last year SUVs,

          4  pick-ups and minivans outsold cars for the first

          5  time, which has increased C02 emissions of the

          6  average automobile to its highest point in two

          7  decades. All of this is occurring at a time where

          8  many scientists worldwide are pointing to recent

          9  extreme weather patterns as evidence that we are

         10  already in an early stage of global warming.

         11                 These extreme weather patterns of

         12  drought and deluge, they argue, are clear evidence

         13  that our climate has already been affected by the

         14  human activity. We have reached a point where it is

         15  incumbent upon every level of government to act in

         16  the face of this phenomenon. No act will be too

         17  small or insignificant.

         18                 The failure to respond or be caught

         19  up in pointless policy debates is no longer an

         20  option. We have to replace the policy of denial

         21  currently advocated at our highest level of

         22  government with environmental sanity. We also need

         23  to understand that as the newly emerging climate

         24  justice movement is teaching us, that the poor are

         25  most vulnerable to the effects of climate change.
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          2  Given that poor people and people of color are

          3  concentrated in urban centers and coastal regions

          4  and areas with substandard air quality, they are

          5  certain to be the first and hardest hit by global

          6  warming.

          7                 Air pollution already affects people

          8  of color especially hard. Over 57 percent of whites,

          9  65 percent of African-Americans and 80 percent of

         10  Latinos lived in 437 counties with substandard air

         11  quality. People of color are twice as likely to die

         12  in a heat wave. People of color are already almost

         13  three times more likely than whites to be

         14  hospitalized or die from asthma or other

         15  health-related affects from air pollution.

         16                 Compounding this problem is the fact

         17  that people of color have a health uninsurance rate

         18  that is twice that of whites. According to the

         19  American Lung Association, New York air is among the

         20  worst in the nation. According to a recent report

         21  issued by the American Lung Association, New York

         22  City ranks the 20th worst metropolitan area for

         23  ozone pollution in the United States. One-sixth of

         24  New Yorkers currently suffer from respiratory

         25  illnesses. New York City's children already suffer
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          2  from the highest rate of asthma in the nation with

          3  East Harlem alternated with parts of the Bronx

          4  showing the highest hospitalization rates for

          5  children.

          6                 The two leading reasons why we

          7  continue to breathe highly-polluted air in New York

          8  State are tail pipe emissions and dirty power

          9  plants.

         10                 Tail pipe emissions lead to the

         11  creation of ozone. Long-term exposure to ozone is

         12  debilitating to the human respiratory system,

         13  leaving children and the elderly who are showing

         14  high rates of emphysema, leaving them at greatest

         15  risk for lung diseases. It is a scientific certainty

         16  that higher temperatures resulting from global

         17  warming will increase smog.

         18                 The State of California set a bold

         19  example for the nation when they passed a measure

         20  this July that will lead to the dramatic reduction

         21  of C02 emissions. More than ever New Yorkers need

         22  our elected officials to act similarly in our best

         23  environmental interests.

         24                 So, the Sierra Club strongly urges

         25  the passage of Resolution Number 439.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          3  you very much. I appreciate that.

          4                 Well, we've got to find a seat at the

          5  table for our last panelist here.

          6                 MS. BURDELSKI: Good afternoon. I'm

          7  Juliet Burdelski. I'm the Director of Urban Outreach

          8  with INFORM's Sustainable Transportation Program.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Welcome.

         10                 MS. BURDELSKI: And INFORM appreciates

         11  also the opportunity to speak to you today.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         13                 New York State Assembly Bill 11895,

         14  which would require the State of New York to adopt

         15  California's new C02 rules, will significantly

         16  reduce greenhouse gas emissions from motor vehicles.

         17                 New York City Council support of

         18  these rules will be an important way for the City to

         19  demonstrate its continued and strengthened

         20  commitment to providing clean air for New Yorkers. A

         21  successful plan to reduce emissions for motor

         22  vehicles, will likely include the widespread use of

         23  alternative fuel vehicles, which significantly

         24  reduce emissions of all criteria pollutants,

         25  including carbon dioxide, a greenhouse gas.
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          2                 The continued use of alternative fuel

          3  buses and light-duty vehicles that run on

          4  alternative fuels by the City of New York will only

          5  help meet the state's future greenhouse gas emission

          6  reduction goals, as well as its overall air

          7  pollution reduction goals.

          8                 This emission benefit of alternative

          9  fuel vehicles has recently been confirmed by a study

         10  by the California Air Resources Board, which shows

         11  that heavy duty natural gas bus technologies

         12  continue to have lower emissions than diesel buses

         13  equipped with the most advance filters and oxidation

         14  catalysts, and using significantly cleaner low

         15  sulfur diesel fuel.

         16                 Therefore, INFORM is encouraging the

         17  City Council, as a part of its greenhouse gas

         18  reduction program, to do everything it can do today

         19  to strengthen its support for alternative fuel use

         20  in New York City today and in the future. Such

         21  efforts may include:

         22                 - expanding Local Law 6, to include

         23  vehicles not covered in the law, such as garbage

         24  trucks and also construction equipment.

         25                 - to continue the Department of

                                                            127

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  Transportation's stated policy that it will purchase

          3  no new diesel buses for its franchised bus fleets.

          4                 - to continue the purchase of light

          5  duty compressed natural gas vehicles to help support

          6  the development and operation of public access

          7  compressed natural gas fueling stations that could

          8  ultimately lead to a hydrogen infrastructure, and to

          9  support the state-wide efforts that would allow for

         10  the transport and siting of new liquefied natural

         11  gas fueling stations throughout the State of New

         12  York.

         13                 These issues were recently raised at

         14  an alternative fuel summit this spring which was

         15  attended by Council Member Serrano and other members

         16  of the Council.

         17                 We also welcome the opportunity to

         18  discuss these issues with the City Council at a

         19  hearing focused on how to meet the greenhouse gas

         20  reduction goals, and other air attainment goals

         21  through the operation of alternative fuel vehicles

         22  by the City of New York.

         23                 We encourage the City of New York to

         24  continue to be a leader nationally in the protection

         25  of air quality in reducing greenhouse gases and in
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          2  the use of alternative fuel vehicles so that New

          3  Yorkers can breathe easier. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          5  you. I appreciate your remarks, your testimony, and

          6  your lobbying efforts on behalf of our own

          7  Alternative Fuel program that we have here. I was

          8  the Environmental Policy Analyst for the Committee

          9  back in 1991 when we did Local Law 6, and it

         10  certainly did not escape my attention that Local Law

         11  6 11 years down the road is in need of some pretty

         12  serious tweaking and you can rest assured that

         13  that's on my agenda, but it's always nice to be

         14  encouraged. We all need encouragement and help and I

         15  know that you'll all be there for us when we take

         16  that initiative.

         17                 One question I just want to sort of

         18  put out there. Does anyone on this panel have any

         19  information on the cost of a vehicle, I mean I guess

         20  we don't really know like what the new California

         21  standards are actually going to be and it's really

         22  sort of hard to speculate I guess, but has anyone

         23  here done any research on what it might cost on

         24  average per copy per cars that, you know, meet these

         25  new standards? I guess there's a presumption that
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          2  they will be a little bit more expensive? Has that

          3  been the case?

          4                 That just hasn't come up today and I

          5  think it's worthwhile putting the question out there

          6  as to whether or not, you know, vehicles that might

          7  comply with the California standards and give us the

          8  benefits that we're looking for in terms of rare

          9  quality, there might be a potential higher cost per

         10  copy of such vehicles. Anyone looked in the

         11  literature or are the automakers speculating on what

         12  higher costs might be? What's out there? Anybody

         13  have anything to add to this? I've got to play

         14  devil's advocate at least on something.

         15                 MS. WASHINGTON: I think Theo may have

         16  some actual numbers. Just two points: Historically

         17  whatever you hear from the manufacturers is going to

         18  be many magnitudes higher than the actual cost and

         19  their projections have always been high.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good.

         21                 MS. WASHINGTON: Another point. There

         22  have been some figures put together that are

         23  speculative I'm sure, as part of the Governor's

         24  Greenhouse Gas Task Force, some cost numbers, as

         25  well as possible benefits and actual reductions
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          2  which you asked about earlier.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          4                 MS. WASHINGTON: That report hasn't

          5  been published yet. We're expecting it any time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So we don't

          7  really know.

          8                 Theo, do you have anything on that?

          9                 MR. SPENCER: Well, again, as you

         10  alluded to, it's sort of too early to say because

         11  the California Air Resources Board has to come out

         12  with its recommendations, which will be about 2005.

         13                 In the past in California some of the

         14  pollution controls have, at least in some instances,

         15  have added up to a higher cost on the vehicle. Some

         16  are under, but it's usually under $1,000, as far as

         17  I understand it, and as you mentioned earlier, one

         18  of the side benefits of legislation like this is

         19  increased fuel efficiency, and as a result some of

         20  those improvements end up being paid for by that

         21  increased efficiency over the lifetime of the

         22  vehicle. So, I think it, potentially there might be

         23  a slightly higher up-front cost, but I think there's

         24  also very strong potential that those costs might be

         25  covered over the lifetime of the vehicle, and in
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          2  fact the consumers probably will save money, that's

          3  what our research shows.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I would agree

          5  with that. And no one could say that I didn't ask,

          6  right?

          7                 Do you have something to add?

          8                 MS. BURDELSKI: And just the obvious

          9  point that there are overall society benefits from

         10  obviously global warming, and the health costs that

         11  would offset any technological innovation that would

         12  be put on a tail pipe or something like that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. I mean,

         14  yes, that kind of goes without saying, but that is

         15  always important to keep in mind.

         16                 Thank you. Thank you all very much, I

         17  appreciate your --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         19  just if I may?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, pardon me.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It's all

         22  right, I just want to thank --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I didn't realize

         24  that you were down for a question or a comment. I

         25  certainly would have recognized you, I didn't know.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: That's all

          3  right. I wasn't down but I'm here.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I just wanted

          6  to thank those who testified, and particularly to

          7  welcome Val Washington here today, and compliment

          8  her particularly, without taking anything away from

          9  the others, for the job that you do in this area in

         10  New York State. It's very important.  And I follow

         11  the actions of environmental advocates very closely.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all

         13  very much. I appreciate it.

         14                 And we have another panel to call up.

         15  Dr. Patrick Kinney of Columbia University; George

         16  Thurston of New York University, and Craig Wilson of

         17  the American Lung Association.

         18                 I just have to be excused for like 60

         19  seconds, I'll be right back. And we'll start when I

         20  get back. I'll just be gone a minute.

         21                 (Recess taken.)

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We're back.

         23  We're still sprinting here. We're still trying to

         24  meet our deadline. Okay, we have our next panel

         25  fully assembled. Terrific.
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          2                 Thank you all very much for being

          3  here. Donna will do the honors.

          4                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          5  right hand.

          6                 In the testimony that you're about to

          7  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          8  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          9                 MR. KINNEY: I do.

         10                 MR. THURSTON: I do.

         11                 MR. WILSON: I do.

         12                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all

         14  very much for being here taking time out of your

         15  busy schedules. We're grateful to have you here.

         16  Please identify yourselves for the record, and

         17  proceed with your testimony.

         18                 MR. KINNEY: I'm Patrick Kinney. I'm

         19  an Associate Professor at Columbia School of Public

         20  Health. I appreciate the opportunity to come here

         21  and speak to you today.

         22                 I wanted to spend a couple of minutes

         23  talking about one of the big environmental

         24  multipliers that you spoke of earlier, that is the

         25  human health improvements that could occur as a
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          2  result of this bill.

          3                 First let's note that automobiles and

          4  other motor vehicles emit large amounts of carbon

          5  dioxide, as was noted. Also, they result in large

          6  amounts of ozone and particle air pollution, as

          7  well, which have very well known health impacts,

          8  which I'm going to say a few words about.

          9                 But first let's talk about X02 just

         10  for a second because the public health impacts are

         11  important there and as Cynthia Rosenzweig alluded

         12  earlier.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: To the extent

         14  that it hasn't been covered earlier, because I want

         15  to get to new ground.

         16                 MR. KINNEY: Yes, definitely. Just to

         17  expand on what she said, I want to point out that

         18  global warming and the impacts especially on the New

         19  York City metropolitan area could include such

         20  health impacts as increased vector-borne disease

         21  incidents such as malaria and West Nile virus, that

         22  sort of thing. Also increased heat mortality, which

         23  has been mentioned, as well as increased

         24  concentration of air pollutants.

         25                 Now, having said that, let me turn my
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          2  attention really to what I want to talk about,

          3  mainly which is the multiplier that's going to be

          4  the benefit that's going to be accrued specifically

          5  for New York residents. You know, the global impacts

          6  are very important, and it's important to focus on

          7  those, but let's keep in mind as well that there's a

          8  very important direct impact, improvements in the

          9  health of the local residents, and because motor

         10  vehicles emit their pollution in close proximity to

         11  where we live and work and play, they have a

         12  disproportionate impact on our health, compared to

         13  industrial sources and power plants in general. And,

         14  so, as a result, the ozone and the particle

         15  pollution that results from motor vehicles has an

         16  especially large impact on the health of New York

         17  City and New York State residents.

         18                 The health impacts of those particles

         19  are well established, very well based and scientific

         20  evidence as I got into some detail in my written

         21  testimony, but some of those affects included

         22  diminished lung capacity among children, increased

         23  hospitalizations for asthmatics and other people

         24  with respiratory problems, and premature mortality

         25  for both ozone and particles. These are very serious
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          2  impacts and are so important that they led the USEPA

          3  to set new standards for both onzone and particles

          4  recently.

          5                 Now, New York City and New York

          6  State, many parts of New York State are going to be

          7  out, either are or will be out of compliance with

          8  the standards, so the current health impact of those

          9  pollutants is great. Anything we can do, including

         10  this bill, to reduce concentrations of ozone and

         11  particles that New York State residents encounter is

         12  a good thing.

         13                 So, there's a big environmental

         14  multiplier there and I just wanted to emphasize

         15  that.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         18  you very much. I'm grateful for your testimony.

         19                 Please state your name for the record

         20  and proceed.

         21                 MR. THURSTON: Yes, I'm George

         22  Thurston. I'm on the faculty at the NYU School of

         23  Medicine, and my testimony is very much in agreement

         24  with what Dr. Kinney was just speaking about. I will

         25  mention I'm also Director of our NIEHS, National
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          2  Institute of Environmental Health Sciences Community

          3  Outreach and Education Program at NYU, and a goal of

          4  our program is to provide impartial scientific

          5  resource on environmental health issues to

          6  decision-makers, and that's my purpose in testifying

          7  to you today.

          8                 And as Dr. Kinney was saying, it's

          9  well known that if global warming increases ambient

         10  temperatures, it will also increase the formation of

         11  ozone and particulate matter. And also, if we

         12  control the precursors, the pollutant, we control

         13  C02 and the other greenhouse gases, we will also

         14  control ozone and particulate matter and as my

         15  testimony lays out there are a number of health

         16  affects that Dr. Kinney was referring to that could

         17  be avoided as a result of applying these greenhouse

         18  gas mitigation programs.

         19                 And I guess I could just jump, since

         20  Dr. Kinney has covered this, the number of added

         21  adverse health affects that go with climate change

         22  and that we could avoid by doing greenhouse gas

         23  mitigation, such as proposed in this resolution,

         24  including reduced hospital emissions and deaths and

         25  also in children asthma problems. And New York City,
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          2  as had been mentioned earlier, is one of the highest

          3  incidence rates of asthma in the United States. So

          4  this is of grave concern.

          5                 So, I guess I should just point to

          6  the article that I attached. I think this is, it's

          7  an article from last year, the journal Science,

          8  where I and some other researchers actually

          9  quantified the health benefits, and it's attached --

         10  yes, that's it -- from the journal Science, August

         11  17th, 2001, and for four cities we went through and

         12  said, well, if we were to go forward with climate

         13  change mitigation measures, and therefore pollution

         14  were to clean up, how many adverse health affects

         15  would be avoided? And, so, we actually did this

         16  calculation for New York City as one of the cities.

         17  Also Santiago, Chili, San Paolo, Brazil and Mexico

         18  City, Mexico. So, one of the points, of course, is

         19  that these benefits go to the people who clean them

         20  up, whether it's a developing country or the US. So,

         21  it's not just sort of a feel good, worldwide benefit

         22  of cleaning up, we should get rid of greenhouse

         23  gases because the whole world would benefit.

         24  Actually, people who do the clean-up get the health

         25  benefits. And we actually went through, and based on
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          2  what information we have right now, and I'm sure

          3  there are more benefits than are represented here,

          4  these are just the ones we had data studies that

          5  could estimate. But, you know, it has been

          6  quantified. There are hidden health benefits of

          7  greenhouse gas mitigation. We're not just talking

          8  about saving the earth in 20 years from now.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         10                 MR. THURSTON: We're talking about

         11  saving lives and health today as a benefit.

         12                 So, in summary, I would just point

         13  out the proposal to limit emissions of greenhouse

         14  gases from motor vehicles by also adopting future

         15  California motor vehicle emission standards in New

         16  York would be an effective way to protect both the

         17  environment and the health of New York City

         18  residents.

         19                 And lastly, I did stick in here,

         20  since we just had this come out, our center, all the

         21  research that's going on in the New York area, yes,

         22  by centers like Columbia, NYU, Mount Sinai, it's a

         23  summary of all the health research that's going on

         24  right now, looking into the adverse, the potential

         25  adverse health effects of the disaster at the World
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          2  Trade Center.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          4                 MR. THURSTON: So, I just gave that to

          5  you. It just came out this week.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, thank you.

          7  Thank you very much.

          8                 MR. THURSTON: Sure.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I appreciate

         10  that.

         11                 MR. THURSTON: You're welcome.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         13                 Please.

         14                 MR. WILSON: Good afternoon. My name

         15  is Craig Wilson, and I am the Associate Director of

         16  Environmental Health for the American Lung

         17  Association of the City of New York.

         18                 Founded in 1902, the American Lung

         19  Association of the City of New York is the oldest

         20  voluntary health agency in the nation, and for

         21  centuries we have led the fight for lung health and

         22  clean air.

         23                 Before I begin my testimony on the

         24  resolution, I would like to express the Lung

         25  Association's support for strengthening Local Law 6,
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          2  and also for parenting the DOT from back sliding on

          3  their commitment to compressed natural gas buses.

          4                 Each year more than 5 million New

          5  York City residents suffer from lung diseases such

          6  as asthma, emphysema, influenza and lung cancer. In

          7  our State of the Air report released earlier this

          8  month, Bronx, New York, Queens, and Richmond

          9  Counties received an F for ozone air pollution for

         10  the third year in a row.

         11                 Overall, New York City was the 20th

         12  worst metropolitan area in terms of ozone pollution

         13  in the United States.

         14                 Recognizing these troubling

         15  statistics I'm here today to offer our support for

         16  Resolution 439 and to join the City Council in

         17  calling on the New York State Legislature to enact

         18  Assembly Bill 11895 by Mr. DiNapoli.

         19                 New York State has long been aligned

         20  with the California emission standards for motor

         21  vehicles.

         22                 In 1992, the State Department of

         23  Environmental Conservation adopted the California

         24  low emission vehicle standards and has maintained

         25  consistency with that program every time California
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          2  modified it.

          3                 In the last two years the state has

          4  deepened its alignment with California standards for

          5  motor vehicle emissions. In September 8th, 2000,

          6  Governor Pataki signed into law legislation that

          7  directs the Department of Environmental Conservation

          8    to promulgate regulations requiring all new

          9  personal water craft, known informally by the trade

         10  name Jet Ski, to meet the same standards as set by

         11  California. We would like to note that the

         12  legislation considered in the resolution before this

         13  Committee today, is based on the personal watercraft

         14  emission standards.

         15                 Just last month the DEC won

         16  regulatory approval from the Environmental Review

         17  Board to promulgate emission standards for heavy

         18  duty diesel vehicles if enacted into law. Excuse me.

         19  If enacted into law, Assembly Bill 11895 will

         20  continue our alignment with California passenger

         21  vehicle emission standards.

         22                 More importantly, this legislation

         23  will sharply the amount of greenhouse gases emitted

         24  by passenger vehicles, which are a leading source of

         25  emissions.
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          2                 A global warming is typically thought

          3  of as an environmental issue, the ALA of the City of

          4  New York views it as a health issue. Here is why:

          5  First, global warming will cause ozone to form more

          6  rapidly and thus further exacerbate the asthma

          7  epidemic we are experiencing in New York.

          8                 When inhaled, ozone can cause acute

          9  respiratory problems, aggravate asthma, cause

         10  inflammation of lung tissue, and lead to hospital

         11  emissions and emergency room visits.

         12                 Ozone is formed when emissions from

         13  smoke stacks and tail pipes are cooked on hot sunny

         14  days. Researchers in NASA's jet propulsion labs have

         15  found linear relationships between ambient

         16  temperatures and the likelihood of an ozone problem

         17  in Los Angeles.

         18                 Specifically they found that when the

         19  temperature was at or below 70 degrees, there was a

         20  zero percent chance of an ozone exceedence (sic) and

         21  when the temperature rose above 90 degrees, the

         22  chance was a 100 percent.

         23                 Here in New York City more than half

         24  a million residents in the five boroughs, and one

         25  out of every ten of our school children suffer from
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          2  asthma, a chronic and often debilitating lung

          3  disease.

          4                 Second, any effort that requires

          5  reductions in greenhouses will also reduce ambient

          6  levels of fine particles and ozone.

          7                 Researchers looking into the near

          8  term health benefits of greenhouse gas reduction

          9  strategies have found that New Yorkers could benefit

         10  greatly from efforts to reduce greenhouse gases.

         11                 The June 2001 addition of

         12  environmental health perspectives report research

         13  indicating that efforts to address global warming in

         14  New York City could also prevent 8,700 premature

         15  deaths, 56 of which would be infants, 3,000

         16  hospitalization, and 25,000 emergency room visits

         17  over 20 years.

         18                 These benefits would come as a result

         19  of lower concentrations of airborne fine particles

         20  and ozone.

         21                 Reducing these two pollutants is one

         22  of the American Lung Association's primary focuses

         23  as these substances are directly linked to increased

         24  rates of lung cancer, asthma and other lung

         25  illnesses.

                                                            145

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 Now, more than ever, New Yorkers and

          3  Americans are aware of the value of every breath we

          4  take. The ALA of the City of New York is devoted to

          5  making sure that these breaths are clean and safe.

          6                 Cleaning up emissions from passenger

          7  vehicles is a vital step to ensuring the long health

          8  of our city, state and nation for generations to

          9  come, and therefore we offer our full support for

         10  Resolution 439.

         11                 The American Lung Association of the

         12  City of New York calls on the entire City Council

         13  and the Mayor to join with us and our partners in

         14  the environmental community as we work in Albany to

         15  secure passage of Assembly Bill 11895.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all so

         18  very much. I mean, I think, you know, we've got

         19  Columbia University, New York University and the

         20  American Lung Association, who else do you have to

         21  hear it from, you know? So thank you all very much.

         22  We do intend to vote this resolution at the next

         23  hearing of this Committee which is -- did we

         24  schedule a hearing yet? September 24th. Oh, my son's

         25  birthday. And, so, I thank you all very much for
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          2  your testimony and for the detailed documentation

          3  that you provided particularly, and thank you for

          4  bringing this, although not directly related to what

          5  we're doing here today, it's very important for us

          6  to have it. This Committee did have a hearing on the

          7  health and environmental impacts of that terrible

          8  tragedy, and we very much appreciate being informed

          9  and kept up-to-date on all of your activities.

         10                 I want to make sure that you know how

         11  to contact the Counsel to the Committee, Donna

         12  DeCostanzo. I'd like this to be an ongoing

         13  relationship regarding any environmental concerns

         14  that you might have or ideas or whatever, please

         15  pass them along to Donna and we'll see if we can

         16  make something good happen. So we value you being

         17  here, we want to start a partnership and are very

         18  grateful for your good comments for us today.

         19                 So, thank you. Thank you very much.

         20                 MR. KINNEY: It sounds like a good

         21  idea.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, you bet.

         23                 So, we're calling our last, but

         24  certainly not least, panel. Peggy Shepard of WHEA;

         25  Tim Logan, New York City Environmental Justice
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          2  Alliance; Tom Marzella from KeySpan; and Marian

          3  Feinberg, South Bronx Clean Air Coalition.

          4                 I'd like to recognize the presence of

          5  Bill Driscoll, a friend of mine, and Pete

          6  Crocendalas, for the record.

          7                 Thank you all very much. I appreciate

          8  your patience. It's been a little bit of a long

          9  hearing, you're very nice to sit through it and

         10  patience and to wait to give us the benefit of your

         11  views. We're grateful to have you here today.

         12                 Donna will do the honors, and then

         13  we'll proceed.

         14                 Donna, please.

         15                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         16  right hands.

         17                 In the testimony that you're about to

         18  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         19  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         20                 MR. MARZELLA: I do.

         21                 MS. SHEPARD: I do.

         22                 MS. FEINBERG: I do.

         23                 MR. LOGAN: I do.

         24                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, yes. Before
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          2  I forget I'd like to indicate that Chairman DiNapoli

          3  from the State Assembly, the sponsor of the bill

          4  that we very much support has provided written

          5  testimony, of course in support of what we're doing

          6  here, and I just wanted to say that for the record,

          7  that he did send in written testimony.

          8                 Once again, I'd like to thank you all

          9  for giving us your time and the benefit of your

         10  views, and what we'll do is we'll just do each of

         11  the witnesses in order without questions, and then

         12  after the fact if I or my colleagues have questions,

         13  we'll just question everybody all at once.

         14                 So, thanks very much. Please state

         15  your name for the record, then proceed with your

         16  testimony.

         17                 MR. MARZELLA: Good afternoon. My name

         18  is tom Marzella. As the representative for KeySpan

         19  Energy Delivery's natural-gas-vehicle marketing

         20  efforts, I want to express KeySpan's support for New

         21  York State to enact A. 11895, which adopts motor

         22  vehicle emissions standards identical to those

         23  developed for California.

         24                 New York City has significant air

         25  pollution concerns. Too many commuter and school
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          2  buses, taxis, and collection trucks still spew

          3  diesel fumes into the air we breathe. Emissions from

          4  gasoline and diesel fuels used in transportation are

          5  major contributors to air pollution, which

          6  aggravates a variety of respiratory diseases.

          7  Natural gas is the far cleaner and healthier fuel.

          8                 Improving emission standards for

          9  motor vehicles will greatly benefit public health in

         10  New York City. Encouraging the use of natural gas

         11  will do even more.

         12                 The quality of New York's air is

         13  better than it once was, but our progress is

         14  threatened. For more than ten years, the New York

         15  City Department of Transportation has had a policy

         16  of exclusively purchasing natural gas buses. The

         17  program has been remarkably successful. DOT operates

         18  three depots equipped with natural gas fueling

         19  stations and more than 350 natural gas buses. We

         20  encourage the City Council to work with DOT to

         21  continue this policy.

         22                 KeySpan encourages the City Council

         23  to pass legislation that supports the use of clean

         24  natural gas for transit buses. In addition, Local

         25  Law --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If I could just

          3  sort of jump in. Of course people are using the

          4  opportunity of this hearing to speak to a host of

          5  clean air concerns, the previous witnesses have made

          6  clear and have urged this Committee to revamp Local

          7  Law VI with regard to alternative fuel vehicles, so,

          8  you know, duly noted, but to the extent that we

          9  could speak to the resolution at hand, that would be

         10  great, okay?

         11                 MR. MARZELLA: Okay. I'll just jump to

         12  the last paragraph.

         13                 One year has passed since the tragedy

         14  of September 11th. That day should be a constant

         15  reminder of the vulnerability of our nation and our

         16  critical need to reduce our economic and political

         17  dependence on foreign petroleum products. North

         18  America has ample supplies of clean natural gas. For

         19  the sake of our nation's security and our City's

         20  environmental health, New York City should lead the

         21  way in the deployment of natural gas and other

         22  alternative fuel vehicles.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         25  much. I appreciate you being here. Thank you.
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          2                 Peggy.

          3                 MS. SHEPARD: Okay. Hello.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          5                 MS. SHEPARD: Thank you for holding

          6  the hearing, and I appreciate the opportunity to

          7  speak today.

          8                 I am Peggy Shepard, the Executive

          9  Director of West Harlem Environmental Action, or

         10  WHEA. We are a community-based organization working

         11  locally and nationally for environmental health and

         12  justice over the last 15 years.

         13                 I'm here today to testify to the

         14  benefits offered by Resolution 439, because we know

         15  too well the tremendous toll on the health and

         16  economic well-being of New Yorkers that is exacted

         17  by local exposures from motor vehicle emissions,

         18  particularly on our most vulnerable members.

         19                 We also know that the contribution of

         20  motor vehicle emissions to global warming can have

         21  severe local impacts as well, as we've already

         22  heard.

         23                 Certainly a study of the 15 largest

         24  American cities found that global warming would

         25  increase heat-related deaths by 90 percent, and
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          2  people of color are twice as likely to die in a heat

          3  wave than white.

          4                 While the loss of human life is the

          5  greatest toll exacted by global warming, it is not

          6  the only impact. Global warming can also rob

          7  low-income families of a significant portion of the

          8  incomes that they need to survive.

          9                 As temperatures rise, there is a

         10  corresponding rise in the amount spent on

         11  electricity and water. This robs low-income families

         12  of income that would otherwise be used to put food

         13  on the table for other necessities.

         14                 Certainly short-term exposure to

         15  ozone can lead to asthma attacks, respiratory

         16  irritation, and increased risk of developing other

         17  respiratory illnesses, while long-term exposure is

         18  associated with the development of asthma,

         19  particularly in children.

         20                 This is one of many reasons why New

         21  York City has a clear incentive to urge the state to

         22  adopt stringent greenhouse gas motor vehicle

         23  emissions.

         24                 But addition, in addition to

         25  supporting this key piece of state legislation, the
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          2  City Council has another opportunity to demonstrate

          3  its commitment to reducing greenhouse gases and

          4  improving the quality of air for New Yorkers. A key

          5  step toward this would be supporting the use of

          6  clean fuel by New York City's own fleet. Alternative

          7  fuels provide not only lower emissions of greenhouse

          8  gases, but multiple other health and economic

          9  benefits for New Yorkers, as compared to

         10  conventional diesel fuels vehicles. And as we know,

         11  the EPA just earlier this week has declared diesel

         12  particulates cancer causing.

         13                 So, WHEA urges the City Council to

         14  hold hearings to explore the multiple benefits of

         15  converting the City, bus and truck fleets to clean

         16  fuels. The City Council can also pass legislation

         17  requiring the City to carry through on its current

         18  commitment to clean fuels, as well as expand this

         19  program.

         20                 So, in closing, I reiterate WHEA's

         21  support for this resolution while urging this City

         22  Council to take advantage of additional

         23  opportunities to demonstrate the City of New York's

         24  commitment to reducing greenhouse gases and other

         25  air pollutants through a strong alternative fuels
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          2  and emission reduction city program.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          5                 Thank you, Peggy. I appreciate it.

          6                 MS. FEINBERG: Hi. I was going to say

          7  good morning, but it's good afternoon. My name is

          8  Marian Feinberg. I'm the Health Coordinator of the

          9  South Bronx Clean Air Coalition. We're an

         10  environmental justice organization in the South

         11  Bronx that has been around for 11 years trying to

         12  reduce the impacts of pollution on our community.

         13                 We commend the sponsors of the

         14  resolution for focusing your attention on this very

         15  important issue, and thank the Committee and the

         16  Chair for allowing us to speak today.

         17                 We are here to give our conditional

         18  support for this resolution in the hope that this is

         19  just the beginning of the City Council taking a look

         20  at emissions from vehicular traffic in New York

         21  City, including diesel powered trucks and buses, as

         22  well as cars.

         23                 This bill solely seeks to regulate

         24  and reduce emissions of greenhouse gases from cars.

         25  This is a significant first step. However, a very
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          2  important public health impact of vehicle emissions

          3  left out of the California Act on which the assembly

          4  bill and this resolution are based. It's from fine

          5  particulate matter, which lodges in the lungs and in

          6  the blood vessels of the heart inflaming and

          7  damaging tissue, and causing asthma and

          8  underdevelopment of lungs in exposed adolescents,

          9  according to studies recently released in the last

         10  year by the University of Southern California, along

         11  with the California Air Resources Board.

         12                 Diesel emissions from commercial

         13  vehicles, excluded from the current bills, are the

         14  worst offenders by far, in terms of their impact on

         15  ozone and on the public health impacts of asthma and

         16  other cardiopulmonary diseases and cancer.

         17                 In a recent publication by the

         18  National Organization of Clean Air Trust, it was

         19  estimated that in New York City diesels, primarily

         20  trucks and buses, constitute more than 50 percent of

         21  the particle soot, and about 30 percent of all

         22  smog-forming nitrogen oxide.

         23                 Our organization has, you know,

         24  devoted a lot of its energy to asthma and along with

         25  our initial fight against a major incinerator to the
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          2  impacts of, you know, vehicular traffic,

          3  particularly diesel traffic, on our residents, and

          4  we're currently working, along with Columbia

          5  University, as well as Montefiore Hospital and

          6  Albert Einstein College of Medicine on current,

          7  there are current nationally funded studies that are

          8  going on that are taking a look specifically at

          9  those issues.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I know that

         11  you'll be there to help us when we revamp Local Law

         12  6 of 1991.

         13                 MS. FEINBERG: Absolutely.

         14                 Just to talk a little bit about the

         15  impacts of asthma in our community.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I would rather

         17  if we can --

         18                 MS. FEINBERG: Okay, let me just, let

         19  me move --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I've got a

         21  chairman who needs this room, and I'm willing to

         22  entertain whatever testimony you have that directly

         23  relates to the intro or to the resolution at hand.

         24                 MS. FEINBERG: All right, let me move

         25   --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But a lot of

          3  this testimony is testimony for the next sort of all

          4  fuels and diesel hearing.

          5                 MS. FEINBERG: Right.

          6                 Let me just move on specifically to

          7  comments, more comments on this bill.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Great.

          9                 MS. FEINBERG: This bill is only a

         10  first step. First, the California and New York State

         11  Assembly Bills require, only require emissions

         12  reductions in 2009, giving us seven more years of

         13  this pollution before implementation and

         14  realistically a use of like, let's say the 2008

         15  model year vehicles which are not covered here,

         16  they're going to be on the road until 2020. That's a

         17  long time.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. We're

         19  running into federal law which really only gives,

         20  you know, the federal government itself and the

         21  State of California the ability to sort of do this,

         22  and so our only option is either go with the feds

         23  and go with California, we can't really do our own

         24  thing in that area. So, I mean so we can kind of

         25  like, we can lament that, but --
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          2                 MS. FEINBERG: I just think, as well

          3  as other people here, that we are concerned about

          4  the very, very long lag time that's in this bill,

          5  and feel like it's important that we make note of

          6  that to you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Fine. But we're

          8  sort of locked in to what California has done. And

          9  California is going to be better with the feds, and

         10  so California is the best game in town and that's

         11  where we're going.

         12                 MS. FEINBERG: Another issue that

         13  really concerned us. In the California bill, which

         14  it was not clear to us whether that was actually a

         15  feature that was going to be in whatever New York

         16  State comes up with if this bill is passed, was the

         17  whole concept of pollution credit trading, which is

         18  in the California bill, which provides that vehicles

         19  that use these more stringent pollution control

         20  standards that are on the road before, you know,

         21  before 2009, are going to be able to do pollution

         22  credit trading.

         23                 Our organization, and most other

         24  environmental justice organizations, oppose

         25  pollution credit trading. That is because pollution
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          2  credit trading does not reduce pollution, it merely

          3  shuffles it around. And credits are often bought by

          4  power plants, incinerators and other major

          5  industrial polluters, which are concentrated in

          6  low-income and people of color communities that are

          7  already suffering the worst burden.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And certainly

          9  for future Clean Air legislation people should keep

         10  that in mind, however, the California bill is over,

         11  done with, signed, sealed, delivered and --

         12                 MS. FEINBERG: Well, I'm not worried

         13  about -- I understand if that's true, but here in

         14  New York we have a bill that's currently on the

         15  table, and I would hate to see it copy some features

         16  of the bill that I really feel -- that we really

         17  feel like are against the interest of, you know,

         18  other people of our City, and that pollution credit

         19  trading just trades one, let's one person use the

         20  pollution that supposedly the other guy saved, so

         21  air does not become cleaner.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The New York

         23  bill --

         24                 MS. FEINBERG: Greenhouse gases are

         25  not being reduced if that occurs.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The New York

          3  bill, the only thing the New York bill does, the

          4  DiNapoli bill, is to adopt the California standards.

          5  That's all. There are other types of statewide

          6  clean-up legislation we can do, but Chairman

          7  DiNapoli is restricted by what federal law provides

          8  for.

          9                 MS. FEINBERG: Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You know, the

         11  work of the State of California, the California

         12  Clean Air Resources Board is, it's sort of like,

         13  it's really a take it or leave it proposition for

         14  the State of New York, and, so, and other discussion

         15  about clean air, credit trading and all that is more

         16  appropriate for a discussion for legislation other

         17  than this.

         18                 MS. FEINBERG: Right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But duly noted.

         20                 MS. FEINBERG: Okay. Just to finish up

         21  --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Yes, I

         23  need to conclude. Briefly conclude because we have

         24  to get to Tim and then Tony Avella has got to get in

         25  here.
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          2                 MS. FEINBERG: I'm going to briefly

          3  conclude, but I'm also just going to say that we've

          4  been here for over two hours patiently waiting,

          5  while people who are perhaps more official than we

          6  are were not being rushed through their testimony,

          7  and I just want to make note of that.

          8                 And just to summarize, that we agree

          9  with, you know, and have written in our testimony a

         10  number of the issues that have been previously

         11  brought up about needing to both strengthen

         12  legislation that currently exists, that the City

         13  Council has the power to affect the purchasing

         14  practices and the contract practices of the City,

         15  with regard to cleaner fleets, and we hope that

         16  happens and we also hope that you hold at some point

         17  a public hearing that includes evening hours where

         18  community residents can come out and where we can

         19  all really talk about how to make our City a more

         20  livable and healthier place by reducing New York

         21  City's contribution to global warming and by

         22  reducing the impacts of our vehicular emissions.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         24  you. Thank you very much.

         25                 MS. FEINBERG: And we look forward to
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          2  working with your further.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And we look

          4  forward to working with you also on that. Thank you

          5  very much.

          6                 Tim.

          7                 MR. LOGAN: I'm sorry I missed an

          8  earlier opportunity to speak in favor of the

          9  recycled motor oil intro, I was caught in a NYCAL

         10  meeting discussing childhood lead poisoning. But to

         11  speak to the resolution at hand, yes, we're in favor

         12  of it.

         13                 Why are we in favor of the

         14  resolution? The New York City Environmental Justice

         15  Alliance represents 17 community-based organizations

         16  throughout the City. Those community organizations

         17  are inundated with corridors of vehicular traffic,

         18  as well as commercial corridors from waste transfer

         19  stations in South Jamaica to the LaGuardia Airport

         20  in Flushing to the terminal market, of course, in

         21  Hunt's Point, George Washington Bridge, et cetera.

         22  Some of the health experts spoke earlier about how

         23  in particular low-income communities and communities

         24  of color, as they tend to be together, are overtly

         25  inundated with the health issues as this concerns.

                                                            163

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  So, this is an extremely important issue for the

          3  people who are otherwise most impacted by other

          4  noxious uses, that needs to be dealt with. This

          5  resolution needs to be only a first and beginning

          6  step. You need to address many of the other issues

          7  that so many people have offered, and I won't speak

          8  to them now because of time.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all so

         10  very much. I greatly appreciate the efforts of

         11  KeySpan and WHEA and the Bronx, South Bronx Clean

         12  Air Coalition and the Environmental Justice

         13  Alliance. We fully understand that this Committee

         14  has got a lot of work to do with respect to looking

         15  at our own, you know, all fuel bill, as I said now

         16  11 years old, and everything that we could do with

         17  natural gas and reducing particulate emissions,

         18  which is critical to reducing asthma in the City,

         19  and I know that you'll all be there with us for that

         20  fight and make sure we do it, okay? That's your job.

         21  Make sure we get that done.

         22                 MR. LOGAN: We'll be there.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Thank you

         24  all very much. I greatly appreciate your patience --

         25                 MR. LOGAN: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:-- In waiting so

          3  long, and we are very grateful to have you here. And

          4  with that said, the hearing is adjourned.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 1:20 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )
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          9                 I, LENORE NAGLE, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 13th day of September 2002.
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